NASAA SMALL COMPANY OFFERING REGISTRATION (SCOR) MANUAL

This Manual has been prepared to help you complete the Form U-7 Disclosure Document.

It contains instructions for completing the Items in the Form. If you need further information, contact your State or Provincial securities regulator or the North American Securities Administrators Association.

(www.nasaa.org)

<u>Cover Page</u> - Page 1
FORM U-7
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
Place Company Logo (if any) here or to left or right of Company Name
(Exact name of Company as set forth in Articles of Incorporation or Organizational Documents)
Street address of principal office:
Company Telephone Number:
Person(s) to contact at Company with respect to offering:
Telephone Number (if different from above):
Type of securities offered:
Price per security: \$
Sales commission, if any:%
Minimum number of securities offered:
Maximum number of securities offered:
Total proceeds: If minimum sold: \$
If maximum sold: \$
Investment in a small business is often risky. You should not invest any funds in
this offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment. See Item 1 for a
discussion of the risk factors that management believes present the most substantial risks
to you.
The date of this Disclosure Document is
The first true pages of your Displacing Decimant and the COVED DACE and the

The first two pages of your Disclosure Document are the COVER PAGE and the EXECUTIVE SUMMARY. These pages summarize and highlight some of the essential information of the offering.

Make sure the Cover Page contains the specified information. Do not add any additional information to the Cover Page.

If you have a problem fitting the required information on this page, contact your securities regulator.

The first two items on the Cover Page are the address of the Company's principal office and the Company's telephone number. You may add other ways to contact the Company, such as a facsimile number, an e-mail address, and a web site address.

The next two items on the first Cover Page are:

Person(s) to contact at Company with respect to offering: Telephone Number (if different from above):

If the Company's officers, directors, or employees will offer and sell its securities, respond to these items with their name(s) and telephone number(s). You may include other ways to reach these people, such as a facsimile number or an e-mail address. Check with the securities regulatory agencies in the jurisdictions where the Company will offer its securities to determine whether these people will need to be licensed or registered.

Delete these two items if the Company will offer its securities through sales persons or finders who are not officers, directors, or employees.

Alternatively, the Company may have someone at the Company available to answer questions about the Company, or the offering, even though it has contracted with other sales persons to offer the securities. In that case, respond to these items with the names, telephone numbers, etc. of those officers, directors, or employees.

The next item on the Cover Page is:

Type of securities offered:	
i ype di secullies dilelea.	

You must describe the security in detail. If the Company, for example, is offering Preferred Stock with non-cumulative dividends, your response should clearly disclose that fact.

<u>Cover Page</u> - Page 2		
Executive Summary		
The Company		
Describe the business of the Company.		
Describe how the Company plans to carry out its activities.		
This Company:		
[] Has never conducted operations.		
[] Is in the development stage.		
[] Is currently conducting operations.		
[] Has shown a profit in the last fiscal year.		
[] Other (Specify):		
(Check at least one, as appropriate)		
Jurisdiction and date of formation:		
Fiscal year end:		
(month) (day)		
How the Company Will Use Your Money		
Describe how the company intends to use the proceeds of this offering.		

For more information about how the Company will use your money, see Item 30.
The Principal Officers of the Company
The principal officers of the Company and their titles are:
Chief Executive Officer:
Chief Operating Officer:
Chief Financial Officer:
For more information about these officers, see Item 77.
The Offering
Name of Sales Person(s):
Address:
Telephone Number:
Is there an impound of proceeds until the minimum is obtained? [] Yes [] No (See Items 73 - 76)
Is this offering limited to members of a special group, such as employees of the Company or individuals? [] Yes [] No (See Item 72)
Is transfer of the securities restricted? [] Yes [] No (See Item 53)
This offering is available for sale in the following states:
You should consider the terms and risks of this offering before you invest. No government regulator is recommending these securities. No government regulator has verified that this document is accurate or determined that it is adequate. It is a crime for anyone to tell you differently.

Make sure the Executive Summary contains the specified information. Do not add any additional information to the Executive Summary.

If you have a problem fitting the required information on this page, contact your securities regulator.

The first section of the Executive Summary contains information about the Company. Be especially brief in your answer to the first two items. Try to limit each response to four sentences or less.

The first item is:

Describe the business of the company.

Briefly describe what business the Company does or plans to do. Include a description of the Company's products, goods or services. Indicate which are currently produced or provided and which are planned for the future.

The second item is:

Describe how the company plans to carry out its activities.

Briefly describe how the Company will produce or provide its products or services and how and when it intends to carry out these activities.

The third item is:

This Compa	ny:
[]	Has never conducted operations.
[]	Is in the development stage.
[]	Is currently conducting operations.
[]	Has shown a profit in the last fiscal year.
[]	Other (Specify):
	(Check at least one, as appropriate)

Be sure to correctly characterize the Company's stage of development. You may need to check more than one box.

Generally, a company is in the development stage if substantially all of its efforts are devoted to establishing its business. A development stage company generally has

commenced principal operations, but has not yet produced significant revenues. Development stage activities include: establishing a business plan; raising capital; engaging in research and development; establishing supply sources; acquiring property, plant, and equipment; recruiting and training personnel; developing markets; and starting up production.

After you have completed the entire Disclosure Document, review the Cover Page and Executive Summary for accuracy.

The Company has included in this Disclosure Document all of its representations about this offering. If anyone gives you more or different information, you should ignore it. You should rely only on the information in this Disclosure Document.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Pag</u>	<u>e</u>
Risk Factors	
Business and Properties	
Milestones	
Use of Proceeds	
Selected Financial Information	
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Certain Relevant Factors	•
Description of Securities Offered	

Preferred Stock Debt Securities
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
How These Securities Will Be Offered and Sold
Company Salespersons Other Salespersons and Finders
Purchaser Limitations Impound of Offering Proceeds
Management
Directors of the Company
Consultants Arrangements with Officers, Directors, and Key Persons
Compensation Prior Experience
Certain Legal Proceedings
Outstanding Securities
General
Dividends, Distributions, and Redemptions Options and Warrants Sales of Securities
Saics of Securities
Principal Stockholders
Management Relationships and Transactions
Family Relationships Management Transactions
Litigation
Tax Aspects
Other Material Factors
Additional Information
Signatures
Appendix A – Sample Risk Factors
Appendix B – Accounting Terminology

A TABLE OF CONTENTS is a required feature of the Disclosure Document.

After you have completed the entire Disclosure Document, review the page numbers in the Table of Contents against the actual content of the rest of the Disclosure Document as printed. Be particularly careful to check the page numbers in the Table of Contents of the document you file with securities regulatory agencies.

When the Company makes its offering document available in other types of media, such as when the Company e-mails it as an electronic document or places it on its web site, the page numbers will change. Add a note to each page of the Table of Contents stating that the page numbers correspond to the printed version of the Disclosure Document.

RISK FACTORS

1. List in the order of importance the factors that the Company considers to be the most significant risks to an investor.

PURPOSE. The purpose of risk factors is twofold

- To warn investors of the risks involved in purchasing the security; and
- To protect the Company from later claims that investors were not told all of the material risks.

AVOID GENERALIZED STATEMENTS. You should avoid generalized statements and include risk factors that are specific to the Company and the offering. No specific number of risk factors is required to be identified. Do not respond to Item 1 with a statement that there are no risks to purchasing securities in the offering. <u>Every offering of securities involves risks.</u> Additionally, do not qualify statements of risk in any manner that is intended to minimize the importance of the risks.

RISK FACTORS COMMON TO SMALL COMPANIES. There are several risks that are common to most small companies, especially those in the development stage. These risks include:

- cash flow and liquidity problems
- inadequate capitalization
- inexperience of management
- absence of operating history
- absence of a market for the company's products or services; and
- absence of a market for its stock or other securities.

OTHER RISK FACTORS. Other risk factors commonly appearing in connection with a securities offering address absence of profitable operations in recent periods, an erratic financial history, the overall financial position of the Company, the nature of the business in which the Company is engaged or proposes to engage, conflicts of interest between the Company and Management, arbitrary establishment of offering price, and reliance on the efforts of a single individual for success in operating the business. This listing is not intended to be inclusive as risks vary according to the nature of the Company's business and the type of security offered.

SPECIAL RISK FACTORS RELATED TO SALES OF PREFERRED STOCK OR

DEBT. When a Company sells preferred stock or a debt security, generally the purchaser expects to receive a preference on payments of dividends or interest. Consequently, additional risk factors are required addressing the ability of the Company to pay the preference or repay the debt and the possibility that the preference may not be paid or the debt repaid at all. These risks may be the most important risks disclosed in connection with the offering and you should place them in an appropriate position.

PLACEMENT OF RISK FACTORS. Each risk factor should be stated in a separate concise paragraph. The title of the paragraph should state in specific language the risk discussed in the risk factor. The risk factors should appear in order of importance with the most important risk factors appearing first. If the Company has no operating history or a limited operating history, generally, risks addressing the Company's financial condition should appear first. This is especially true in a debt or preferred stock offering.

You should include cross-references at the end of each risk factor to the place in the Disclosure Document where the risk is discussed in detail. You may find it helpful to write your risk factors and determine their priority after you have completed all the other ltems in the Disclosure Document.

Examples of risk factors can be found in Appendix A.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

2. Describe the business of the Company, including its products or services.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS. Describe the Company's business, focusing on the products or services the Company will be selling. Be brief, but include enough information that a person who knows nothing about the Company's business can

understand what the Company does or will do. If the nature of the Company's business is technical, you should consider whether to include definitions or an explanation of terms in your response to this Item.

Cover the Company's main product or service and explain the context in which the Company provides the product or service. Answers that discuss how the Company intends to produce the products belong in Item 3; answers about the Company's competitive strategy belong in Items 13 and 14 and answers that discuss the Company's marketing strategy belong in Item 15.

In describing the business you should answer these questions:

- Who does the Company sell its products or services to?
- Why are customers using the Company's products or services?
- Is the Company's business retail or wholesale?
- Are products made to customer specifications or mass-produced?

PRESENT v. FUTURE OPERATIONS. Your response to this Item must be broken down into its parts:

- What products or services the Company produces or offers now; and
- What products or services the Company proposes to produce or offer in the future.

Generally, you should limit your answers to activities the Company presently engages in and activities in which it intends to engage in the next 12 months. If the Company plans to engage in activities using money from sources other than the proceeds from this offering of securities, your answer should disclose this fact. You should consider discussing these activities in a separate paragraph.

MULTIPLE PRODUCTS OR BUSINESSES. If you disclose that the Company will undertake to manufacture a number of products or provide more than one service, the disclosure must be directed to the Company's first (or most important) product or service. You should emphasize the product or service covered by the proceeds from the offering. Generally, the time frame for the development of a small company should correspond to the use of its available resources and the use of the offering proceeds.

3. Describe how the Company produces or provides these products or services and how and when the Company intends to carry out its activities.

MANUFACTURING COMPANIES. Your answer should address manufacturing, assembly, and marketing. It is important to disclose what the Company does itself and what it relies on others to do. For example, the Company might manufacture the final product; it might manufacture components and sell them to others who will produce the

final product; or it might assemble a product from components it purchases. You should disclose who markets and distributes the Company's product and what resources (plant, inventory, employees, capital) the Company will need to start or continue manufacturing, assembling, marketing and/or distributing the product.

If the Company plans to offer a new product, disclose the present stage of development, including whether or not the Company has a working prototype. Indicate if the Company will use a material amount of its resources to complete development of the product, and estimate the amount of resources the Company will need to complete development of the product.

If the Company already is producing a product, emphasize how the production of the product will change when the Company has access to the offering proceeds. Discuss what will happen if the Company raises the maximum offering proceeds and what will happen if the Company raises the minimum offering proceeds. The disclosure should be consistent with Item 30, Use of Proceeds.

You should avoid using technical terms to describe the production process, but if you must use them, they should be defined.

SERVICE COMPANIES. If the Company provides a service or intends to provide a service in the future, you should discuss promotion activities, including advertising, public relations, publicity and networking. With respect to an existing service, you should disclose how the service would change when the Company has access to the offering proceeds. Discuss what will happen if the Company raises the maximum proceeds and what will happen if the Company raises the minimum proceeds. The disclosure should be consistent with Item 30, Use of Proceeds.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS. If the Company has a plant, an office or other operations in a foreign country, or is dependent upon foreign suppliers or companies, summarize matters particular to its international operations.

SUPPLIERS

4.	Does the Company have any major supply contracts?	[] Yes	[] No	
If yes	If yes, describe.			

Describe the material terms of major or sole source contracts. Material terms include such Items as a requirement to purchase a minimum amount of raw materials or supplies, a requirement to purchase at a specified price, or other performance requirements.

[] Yes	[] No If yes, describe.
5. (b)	Does the Company expect to continue to be dependent upon a limited number of
()	± • ±
suppliers?	[] Yes [] No If yes, describe.

Is the Company dependent upon a limited number of suppliers?

Items 5 (a) and (b) are included for the purpose of disclosing the impact on the Company's business should it lose its ability to obtain essential raw materials or other supplies or services. Disclose whether the Company depends on or expects to depend on one or a limited number of suppliers for essential raw materials or other supplies. Discuss the impact on the Company if its supplier(s) drastically raises prices, or interrupts or discontinues supplies. You should answer the following questions:

- Are there other sources of supply?
- How long will it take to replace the supplies?
- At what cost?

5.

(a)

You should disclose the consequences of the impact in this Item and you should further consider if a special risk factor should be included in Item 1, Risk Factors.

CUSTOMER SALES AND ORDERS

6.	Does the Company have any major sales contracts? [] Yes	[] No.
	If yes, describe.	

Describe the material terms of major existing sales contracts, including the quantity or quality of the goods and services, or performance dates. If a major contract is oral or informal, you should disclose that fact and the difficulty of enforcing the contract.

If the status of any major contract is uncertain or subject to cancellation, include disclosure in Item 1, Risk Factors.

7. State the total amount of the Company's sales of products or services for the most recent 12 month financial reporting period.

If the Company has not had sales, state so here, and state that you will not be responding to Items 8 through 11.

8. State the dollar amount of a typical sale.

You should be careful to point out if the figure disclosed represents an average rather than actual order size.

9. Are the Company's sales seasonal or cyclical? [] Yes [] No If yes, explain.

If the Company has sales, disclose what percentage of the Company's annual sales revenues are received in each financial quarter. If the pattern of sales shows significant variation among the quarters, disclose the reasons for the variation.

10. State the amount of foreign sales as a percent of total sales for last fiscal year: _____%.

Explain the nature of these sales, including any anticipated changes.

If the Company sells its product or service in a foreign country, summarize matters particular to that country that may have a negative impact on the ability of the Company to conduct business in the country. Such matters may include: devaluation of currency, political instability, or international trade agreements. Describe the impact on the Company. If the impact on the Company's operations is or might be substantial, disclose that in Item 1, Risk Factors.

11. Name any customers that account for, or based upon existing orders will account for, a major portion (20% or more) of the Company's sales.

Disclose any special legal or business relationship the Company has with the customer. Also disclose whether the loss of the customer would have a material adverse effect on the Company. You should consider whether the impact of the loss warrants a special disclosure under Item 1, Risk Factors.

In applying the 20% test, a group of affiliated customers should be regarded as a single customer.

12. State the dollar amount of firm orders.

A firm order is an order that has been confirmed and is not subject to cancellation in the usual course of business. If the Company does not have firm orders, state that you have not completed this Item because the Company has no firm orders.

COMPETITION

13. (a) Describe the market area in which the business competes or will compete.

Generally, limit the discussion of competition to the Company's geographic area. For example, if the Company is building budget motels in a particular city it should discuss competition in the surrounding metropolitan area and not address competition across the state or the United States. If, however, the Company truly competes with businesses outside its geographic area, you should discuss those businesses. An example of a company whose market is outside its geographic area is a company that does business mainly over the Internet.

You should not include information from segments of the market in which the Company does not or will not operate. For example, if the Company is in the business of operating a budget motel, it should not include information relating to resort hotels.

You should not use industry information to project how much the Company could sell if it achieves a certain market share. If you disclose facts and figures, you may be required to file information to document their source.

13. (b) Name the Company's principal competitors and indicate their relative size and financial and market strengths.

Identification of the Company's principal competitors requires a two-step analysis. First, identify the Company's customers and potential customers. Then determine whether other companies exist that are likely to fulfill the needs of the Company's customers and potential customers. You should not forget that another company might use a different method or product to satisfy customers' needs. These companies are competitors and should be included in the response to this Item. An example of two companies that provide the same service in different ways is the company that produces the yellow pages of the phone book and the company that operates an 800 number providing telephone listings.

14.	(a)	Does the Company	compete, or expect to compete, by price?	
	[] Yes	[] No	If yes, describe its competitive strategy.	

If the Company's strategy is to compete on price, you should describe the strategy. If the Company has new technology that will allow it to compete on price, you should generally describe how it will be done.

If competition is by price, disclose the price or price range of the product or service. The price or price range of the product or service may be broken down in a number of ways:

- the cost of the product or services;
- the market price of the product or service; or
- the negotiated price of the product or service.

Disclose if the product is at a stage of development in which it is too early for you to determine its price. If the product has not been produced yet, discuss how you have made the determination that the Company can compete on price? You will need to explain how the Company will go about pricing the product.

14.	(b) Does the Company compete, or expect to compete, by service?		
1 11	()		
	[] Yes	[] No If yes, describe its competitive strategy.	
14.	(c)	Does the Company compete, or expect to compete, on some other basis?	
	[]Yes	[] No If yes, state the basis and describe the Company's	
compo	etitive st	itegy.	

If your response to both Items 14(a) and 14(b) is "no", then you must explain on what other basis the Company expects to compete. Other common bases of competition include a unique product or service, a narrow market, or a product or service warranty.

MARKETING

15. (a) Describe how the Company plans to market its products or services during the next 12 months, including who will perform these marketing activities.

MARKETING STRATEGY v. TACTICS. You should describe how the Company intends to make its products or services known to potential customers. Typically you should disclose whether the Company will make direct sales at retail or wholesale, or sell through distributors or franchises. You need not include every tactic the Company intends to use in its marketing campaign. For example, if the Company will market its product through advertising inserted in telephone bills, it is not necessary to disclose the details of how many households will receive the advertising in each mailing. However, if the advertising is targeted to a certain demographic group, this should be disclosed. In general, it is the fact that the Company targets a particular group for advertising that is relevant, not the details of the targeting method.

MARKETING STUDIES. You should not refer to marketing studies unless you show that there is a basis to believe the marketing study is reasonable and accurate. You should not disclose marketing studies that contain unfounded projections; if a reference is made to a marketing study, you should set out the key assumptions, methods and findings. If the Company has not conducted any formal or scientific marketing studies, this fact should be disclosed.

If the Company has no marketing study or marketing plan, you should disclose this in Item 1, Risk Factors.

15. (b) State how the Company will fund these marketing activities?

If marketing activities are to be paid for with offering proceeds, set out the expenditure in Item 28, Milestones and in Item 30, Use of Proceeds. If the offering involves a minimum and maximum amount, describe the marketing activities to be undertaken at both the minimum and the maximum offering amounts.

EMPLOYEES

- 16. (a) State the number of the Company's present employees by type of employee (i.e., clerical, operations, administrative, etc.).
- 16. (b) State the number of employees the Company anticipates it will have within the next 12 months by type of employee (i.e., clerical, operations, administrative, etc.).

DEFINITION OF EMPLOYEE. If a person is within the normal work group for the Company's type of business, you should treat that person as an employee for disclosure purposes regardless of what the Company calls the person (e.g., employee, independent contractor, consultant).

You should disclose the number of the Company's existing employees and the number of employees the Company anticipates it will hire during the next 12-month period. The number of employees the Company will hire will be dependent upon the amount of money the Company anticipates it will have available to fund these positions.

Distinguish between employees to be added during the next 12-month period based upon the success of the offering and the number of employees that might be added regardless of whether the offering is successful. Distinguish between part time and full time employees. In an offering with a minimum and maximum offering amount, set out the number and type of employees (e.g., clerical, operations, and administrative) to be added if the Company raises the minimum offering amount as well as if the Company raises the maximum offering amount.

17. Describe the Company's labor relations.

Discuss whether the Company has experienced any problems in finding and retaining suitable employees and whether the Company anticipates any similar problems in the future.

If any of the Company's employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements, you should disclose the nature of the agreements. Include the dates the collective bargaining agreements expire.

If the Company's employees are on strike, or have been on strike in the past 3 years, or are threatening to strike, describe the dispute.

18. Indicate any benefits or incentive arrangements the Company provides or will provide to its employees.

You should first cover those benefits that the Company is presently giving its employees and then, those that it expects to give its employees in the future. If the Company intends to offer benefits, disclose whether the board of directors or stockholders must approve them.

Benefits or incentive arrangements can vary widely. Employee fringe benefits usually cover medical insurance, dental insurance, life insurance, vacation leave, sick leave and pension. Incentive arrangements include stock options, stock appreciation rights, low cost loans, bonuses, deferred compensation, profit sharing plans, employment agreements, commissions and royalties on product sales. Incentive arrangements in small businesses more often benefit officers, directors and key employees.

Emphasize benefits to all employees or rank and file employees. Benefits that are available to Officers, Directors and key persons only, should be disclosed in Item 83, Compensation.

You should discuss stock purchase agreements, stock options, rights or warrants that benefit current stockholders or employees in Item 101, Options and Warrants.

PROPERTIES

19. (a) Describe generally the principal properties that the Company owns or leases.

GENERAL. Item 19 (a) relates both to tangible property such as real estate, plant and equipment, and to intangible property such as patents, licenses, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade names, trade secrets, and other intellectual property that the Company owns prior to the offering and will use in the business. Generally, you should describe the important types of property the Company owns or leases.

Focus on the principal properties owned or leased. You should include only the amount of detail necessary to inform investors as to the suitability, adequacy, productive capacity and extent of utilization of the properties and facilities owned or leased by the Company. Descriptions of real estate such as office or warehouse space should be on a square-footage basis. You should disclose the location and character of the property, if this is important to the offering.

If any of the Company's properties are not owned outright, you should disclose the extent of the encumbrances or installment payments. If the terms of purchase constitute long term debt, you should disclose this fact.

You may need to disclose separately the Company's property that is subject to depreciation or obsolescence. If, for example, computer systems constitute an essential part of the business plan, you should discuss obsolescence, replacement and the method of financing replacements. If the Company does not have a plan for replacing plant and equipment, you should disclose this fact.

LEASES. If the Company leases property, you should include a summary of the terms under the leases, including the amount of payments, expiration dates and the terms of any renewal options. If the Company has decided to lease instead of own its property, you should disclose the reasons for the decision. A short term or annual lease raises the questions: What if the Company cannot renew the lease? What will the Company do next? What can the Company afford to do next?

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. Indicate the extent to which the Company's operations depend upon or are expected to depend upon patents, copyrights, trade secrets, know-how, or other proprietary information. Discuss how the Company will use intellectual property, such as a patent, copyright or trade secret to become profitable. Describe the steps the Company has undertaken to secure and protect this intellectual property, including any use of confidentiality agreements, covenants not-to-compete, and efforts taken to protect rights under state, federal and foreign laws. The Company may find it costly to perfect and protect these rights. If such rights have not been secured, you should disclose the cost and time period it will take to secure them. Foreign rights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks and copyrights can exist, but such protection does not always exist to the same extent as in the United States. You should disclose any limitations on foreign rights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks and copyrights. If important, you should discuss each right separately.

Additionally, you should disclose the value the Company has placed on these intangibles and explain how the Company determined that value.

NEGATIVE DISCLOSURE. If the Company has chosen not to protect intellectual property, you should disclose this fact and explain why the Company has chosen not to try to protect its property.

DESCRIPTION OF TYPES OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

<u>Patent</u>. A patent is a right granted by the government to make, use or sell an invention for a period of years.

<u>Copyright</u>. A copyright is a right granted by the government to an "author" of a work in a tangible medium for the exclusive publication, production, sale and distribution of the work. A "work" includes writings, literature, art, drama, motion pictures, and other electronically produced materials.

<u>Trade Secret.</u> A trade secret consists of any formula, pattern, device or calculation of information used in business to obtain a competitive advantage. The owner must take precautions to keep the process or device secret. Examples of possible trade secrets include, but are not limited to, blue prints, production formulas, manufacturing processes, customer lists, price and cost information and computer programs. Precautions might include confidentiality agreements and restrictions on access to the information.

<u>Know-how.</u> Know-how usually means being able to perform successfully, known processes that go to the heart of the production of the product or the operation of the enterprise. For instance, a process may be known by only one employee. An example is winemaking.

<u>Trademark.</u> A trademark is a word, logo, symbol, design or shape used on or in connection with the sale or distribution of a company's product.

<u>Service Mark.</u> A service mark is a word, logo, symbol, design or shape used to identify or in connection with the rendering of a service.

<u>Trade Name</u>. The name of a company that is used in commerce.

LICENSE AGREEMENTS. A license is a grant of rights from the owner of a patent, trademark, trade secret or copyright to another person. Summarize the principal terms and expiration dates of any significant license agreements, including the amount the Company expects to spend during the year. Disclose the relationships with the other party under the license agreement. A license agreement may be exclusive or shared. The Company must be certain before it uses the term "exclusive" license agreement. License agreements often do not assign all of the rights and interests involved.

RISK FACTORS. Many possible risk factors arise out of the treatment, valuation and protection of intangible rights. For example, essential computer software or customer lists may become obsolete within a short period of time. Loss of a key employee may be critical to the Company. Patent or trademark infringement actions either by or against the Company may be very expensive and beyond the means of the Company. You may need to include a general or specific risk factor with regard to the inability of the Company to protect its intellectual property even though the Company has made required filings under law or taken other precautions. If the Company decides not to protect important intellectual property, disclose this fact in Item 1, Risk Factors.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. In the event the Company has purchased or leased properties from its officers, directors, stockholders or other key persons, disclose the relationship and, if relevant, the conflict of interest. You also should disclose whether

the transactions were on terms at least as favorable to the Company as those generally available from unaffiliated third parties.

19. (b) Indicate what properties the Company intends to acquire or lease.

Generally, you should limit your answer to properties the Company intends to acquire in the next 12 months. In addition to describing a proposed acquisition, you should describe why it is being considered and how it will be accomplished. If property is to be acquired with offering proceeds, set out the acquisition in Item 28, Milestones and Item 30, Use of Proceeds. If the offering involves a minimum and maximum amount, describe properties to be acquired at both the minimum and the maximum offering amounts.

Include the cost of such acquisitions and the sources of financing the Company expects to use in obtaining these properties; whether by purchase, lease or otherwise. Address whether the Company will have the cash, credit worthiness, or capital stock available to purchase or lease the property. Disclose sources of financing available to the Company other than the offering proceeds or bank financing.

If you disclose acquisitions of property, you should distinguish between mere intentions, oral agreements, and written obligations.

If the Company has not yet identified properties to be acquired, you should disclose the criteria or standards the Company will use to select and acquire the properties.

If no properties are going to be acquired, you should disclose that the Company does not plan to acquire any properties in the immediate future.

In the event the Company is purchasing or leasing, or intends to purchase or lease, properties from officers, directors, stockholders or other key persons, you should disclose the relationship and, if relevant, the conflict of interest. Disclose whether the Company has established a policy with respect to affiliated transactions.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

20. Indicate the amounts that the Company spent for research and development during its last fiscal year.

Research is the planned effort of a company to discover new information to help create a new product, service, process or technique or vastly improve a current one. Research does not include market research and market testing as this activity relates to the selling and marketing operations of the company. Development takes the findings generated by research and formulates a plan to create the desired item or improve the existing one.

Research and development implies a future benefit. You should disclose how the knowledge gained through research and development will be valuable to the Company and how the Company is likely to be able to derive a commercial benefit from that knowledge. The Company might exploit the knowledge by producing the product or offering the service or by licensing or selling the technology to others.

In discussing historical research and development expenditures, you must identify any expenditures that relate to products or processes that the Company no longer expects to pursue. Additionally, you should distinguish between cumulative research and development and research and development for the last fiscal year.

If the Company has engaged in research and development and had revenues in the last fiscal year, disclose the percentage of the Company's fiscal year revenues these amounts represent.

21.	(a)	Will the Company	expend funds on research and development during the current
fiscal	year?	[] Yes	[] No

- 21 (b) If yes, how much does the Company plan to spend on research and development during the current fiscal year?
- 21. (c) How does the Company intend to fund these research and development costs?

Disclose all sources of funding. If the Company intends to apply proceeds from the offering to research and development costs, set out the use in Item 28, Milestones and Item 30, Use of Proceeds. If the offering involves a minimum and maximum amount, include the amount of proceeds to be applied to research and development at both the minimum and the maximum offering amounts.

GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION

22. (a)	Is the Company's b	usiness subject to	material regulation	by any	governmental
agency?	[] Yes [] N	0			

22.	(b)	Are the Company's products or services subject to material regulation by any
gov	ernmenta	gency? [] Yes [] No
•		
22.	(c)	Are the Company's properties subject to material regulation by any governmental
age	ncv?	[] Ves

22. (d) Explain in detail any "yes" answers to Items 22(a), 22(b), or 22(c), including the nature and extent of the regulation and its effect or potential effect upon the Company.

Concentrate on regulations that extend to the core of the Company's business. Avoid disclosing regulations that are not material or important to the Company's business. The key question is: Does the regulation have a substantial impact on the Company at this phase of the Company's business? If the answer is yes, you should disclose it.

Regulations can be imposed on a company by federal, state, provincial or local government agencies. In completing your response to this Item, you should first identify the type of regulation and then, if it is material, disclose the impact of the regulation. In determining the impact or the potential impact of regulation upon the Company, consider whether a capital expenditure may be necessary, earnings may be curtailed, the competitive position of the Company may be changed, or the continuation of the business may be imperiled.

Discuss regulatory related expenditures that the Company anticipates will be significant. If proceeds of the offering are to be used to pay for them, disclose the expenditure in Item 30, Use of Proceeds.

If the Company is highly dependent upon compliance with a certain governmental regulation in order to do business, disclose this fact in Item 1, Risk Factors.

If compliance with a certain government regulation is a key to the Company's near term profitability, you should include compliance with that regulation as a step in Item 28, Milestones.

The Company must look at indirect and direct impact of a regulation upon the Company's business, products or properties. An example of an indirect regulatory impact would be a decline in the business of a company that makes wood pellets for wood pellet stoves due to the fact that its customers become subject to strict environmental regulation for emissions.

23. (a) Is the Company required to have a license or permit to conduct business?

[] Yes	[] No
23. (b)	If yes, does the Company have the required license or permit?
[] Yes	[] No

- 23. (c) If the answer to Item 23(b) is "yes," describe the effect on the Company and its business if it were to lose the license or permit.
- 23. (d) If the Company has not yet acquired a required license or permit, describe the steps the Company needs to take to obtain the license or permit. Estimate the time it will take to complete each step.

To respond to this Item ask yourself the following questions:

- What licenses, permits or other authority does the Company already have?
- What licenses, permits or other authority must the Company have in order to conduct business?
- How long will it take the Company to obtain the license or permit?
- What if the Company does not obtain the license or permit?
- What if the Company loses its license or permit?

If the Company is highly dependent upon obtaining a license or permit in order to do business, this fact should be disclosed as a risk factor.

If obtaining a license or permit is a key to achieving profitability in the near term, disclose that fact as a step in Item 28, Milestones.

COMPANY HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

24. Summarize the material events in the development of the Company.

Why was the Company started? What was the initial strategy of the Company? If the strategy of the Company changed from its initial concept, explain.

If the Company history includes a merger, acquisition, spin-off, recapitalization, or other similar corporate or company transaction, disclose that event.

25. Describe any recent stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, merger, acquisition, spin-off, or reorganization.

When you respond to this Item, you should cover the past five (5) years, or the period the Company has been in existence, if less than five (5) years. If the Company recently has undergone a stock split, stock dividend or recapitalization in anticipation of this offering, describe the transaction (and adjust historical per share figures elsewhere in this Disclosure Document accordingly). You should disclose major transactional and financial milestones and include significant stock sales. State the purpose for each transaction. If the Company has been in business for some time, the materiality of the disclosure should be treated on a sliding scale. Earlier events should be disclosed only if they are important and continue to be relevant.

26. Discuss any pending or anticipated stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, merger, acquisition, spin-off, or reorganization.

You should disclose any type of pending or anticipated corporate or company reorganization.

27. State the names of any parent, subsidiary, or affiliate of the Company. For each, indicate its business purpose, its method of operation, its ownership, and whether it is included in the Financial Statements attached to this Disclosure Document.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE. You should answer this question so that the corporate or organizational structure is clear to the investor. A chart showing the relationship between affiliates may be a valuable supplement to narrative disclosure.

PARENT. Generally, a parent of the Company is a company that controls the Company, directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries.

SUBSIDIARY. Generally, a subsidiary of the Company is a company that the Company controls, directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries.

AFFILIATE. Generally, an affiliate of the Company is a company that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries controls the Company, or is controlled by the Company, or is under common control with the Company.

A person is said to control a company when that person has the power to direct or influence the direction of the management of the company through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

METHOD OF OPERATION. To understand the risks of the investment, the investor should know how the Company actually will be operated in relation to its parent, subsidiaries or affiliates. Consider the following questions in preparing your response:

- In which company are the proceeds of the offering to be used?
- In which company are the significant assets to be held or deployed?
- Which company will have significant revenues and earnings?
- How will earnings of a parent, subsidiary, or affiliate be distributed to or benefit the Company?
- If a parent owns less than 100% of the Company, who owns the rest?

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. If the Company has a parent, subsidiary or affiliate, you should consider the effect of accounting standards. Generally, a company that controls 50% or more of the stock of another company must have consolidated financial statements. If an affiliate is not included in the financial statements attached to the Disclosure Document, or is included, and the financial statements are not consolidated, you should include an explanation.

MILESTONES

28. Describe in chronological order the steps management intends to take to achieve, maintain, or improve profitability during the 12 months following receipt of the offering proceeds.

If management does not expect the Company to achieve profitability during that time period, describe the business objectives for that period and the steps management intends to take to achieve those objectives.

Indicate the probable timing of each step.

Purpose of MILESTONES. The Milestone Section lists step- by-step future events that management believes must occur in order for the Company to become profitable or to meet its business objectives, and describes the activity management will undertake to complete each step. Your response to Items 28 and 29 should provide sufficient information so that an investor is able to assess the likelihood that the Company's resources will prove adequate to accomplish its goals.

MAJOR STEPS. List the major steps in your business plan. A company that is opening a new business needs to describe the specific steps to open the business. For example, you might list steps such as obtaining a state license; entering into construction contracts; purchasing specific equipment; and hiring a specific number of personnel. This example is particularly useful for development stage companies. It outlines the important steps the Company must take to reach its goal of opening the business.

The following are examples of typical milestones for small business offerings:

- · acquiring a specific piece of equipment,
- · registering a trademark,
- granting a license
- acquiring a specific contract for goods or services
- · achieving a specific level of net sales,
- · reaching a specific number of new markets,
- generating a specific level of manufacturing output,
- reaching a specific level of inventory purchases, or
- implementing the next stage of a business plan (e.g., hiring a marketing staff and creating a new marketing department or creating a new production line).

METHOD OF ACHIEVING THE STEPS. You should describe what the Company must do to complete each step. For example, if you have listed "obtain a patent on its

product" as a Milestone, the expected manner of occurrence might be to hire an attorney to file an application with the US Patent and Trademark Office. If you have listed "purchase machinery" as a Milestone, the expected manner of occurrence might be to contact a dealer in that type of machinery and to enter into a contract for its purchase.

ORDER OF THE STEPS. List the steps of the Company's business plan in chronological order. To determine the sequence of disclosure here, ask the following questions:

- · What are the most important things the Company must do?
- What things must the Company do first?
- · What things are dependent upon others?

To the extent possible you should determine the "critical path" of the steps. What is the last point in time when a step can take place or a condition can be fulfilled before the entire plan is off schedule? What steps are dependent upon others? For instance, should leasing the premises come before or after hiring staff and purchasing equipment? Finally, you should not include past events in the Milestone Section.

The sequence of the steps also must be consistent with the Use of Proceeds Section, Item 30. The Use of Proceeds Section sets out the categories and amounts of funds for use by the Company. The Milestone Section shows the sequence in which the Company will use those funds.

TIMING OF THE STEPS. You should disclose when each step will occur. While a date may be given, it is preferable to state a range or number of months in which the Company expects to accomplish the business objective. In addition, you should indicate when the steps begin, such as upon completion of the minimum offering. The period of disclosure should not exceed 12 months.

COST OF COMPLETION OF THE STEPS. You should indicate the monetary cost to achieve each step. You may express this amount as a range. If the Company does not have access to funds from sources other than the proceeds of the offering, your response should track the Use of Proceeds table. If the Company will exhaust the offering proceeds prior to completing a step, you should indicate whether the Company has access to other sources of funds, identify the sources and disclose whether they are contingent or firm.

BE SPECIFIC. You should be detailed in describing what the Company needs to do to meet its business objectives. You should state a specific numerical amount or range when you describe certain steps. -Examples of specific disclosure include:

"Reach sales of \$100,000," for a manufacturing and merchandising company;

"Acquire 40 large account customers," for a service provider; and "Sign up 10,000 new subscriptions," for a magazine publisher.

OPERATING COMPANIES. If the Company has already been operating for some time, the Company's disclosure should accurately reflect:

- · the current stage of the Company's business plan, and
- how the achievement of a particular business plan objective will have a positive effect on the Company's operations or profits.

TABULAR FORMAT. Describe in tabular form:

- what the steps are,
- · what the Company must do to achieve each step;
- · the order in which the Company will perform each step,
- · the time it will take to complete each step; and
- how much money the Company will spend to complete each step.

Example Milestone Table

Milestone or Step	Expected Manner of Occurrence or Method of Achievement	Date, or Number of Months after Receipt of Offering Proceeds When Step Should be Accomplished	Cost of Completion
Formation and Setup of	Find and Lease Location for	2 months	\$150,000
Company	Company, Purchase		
	Equipment, Hire Employees		
Start Operations	Purchase Materials, Start	2 – 4 months	\$250,000
	Assembling Widgets		
Start Marketing Phase	Develop Sales Materials, Start	2 – 4 months	\$200,000
	Mailings and Product		
	Presentations		
Reach Sales of 3,000	Finish and Ship Widgets	6 – 9 months	\$150,000
Widgets			

29. (a) State the anticipated consequences to the Company if any step is not completed as scheduled.

State the consequences to the Company if there are delays in achieving any of the steps listed in Item 28. You should emphasize the effect on the Company's available funds. In addition, state whether the steps in the Milestone Section are based on receipt of the minimum or maximum offering proceeds. If the steps are based on receipt of the maximum offering proceeds, you should also disclose the effect on the Company of raising only the minimum offering amount.

29. (b) Describe how the Company will deal with these consequences.

After the Company states the probable consequences of delay, identify how the Company will deal with the delays. If the Company has a liquidity problem, disclose how the Company will cut down on expenses. If the lack of funding will impact the Company's business plan, provide detailed disclosure. For example, if the Company is unable to turn a profit in the first year of operation, disclose that the "Company would have insufficient funds to open the second store discussed in the Disclosure Document."

NOTE: After reviewing management's discussion of the steps it intends to take, potential investors should consider whether achievement of each step within the estimated time frame is realistic. Potential investors should also assess the consequences to the issuer of any delays in taking these steps and whether the Company will need additional financing to accomplish them.

USE OF PROCEEDS

If Minimum

Sold

If Maximum

Sold

30. Show how the Company intends to use the proceeds of this offering:

	Amoun	<u> %</u>	Amour	nt %
Total Proceeds	\$	100%	\$	100%
Less: Offering Expenses				
Commissions and Finders Fees				
Legal & Accounting				
Copying & Advertising				
Other (Specify):				
Net Proceeds from Offering	<u>\$</u>		<u>\$</u>	
Use of Net Proceeds				
	\$	%	\$	%
	\$	%	\$	%
	\$	%	\$	%
	\$	%	\$	%
	\$	%	\$	%
Total Use of Net Proceeds	\$	<u>100%</u>	<u>\$</u>	100%

Use of Proceeds Section. This Item requires you to disclose in a table how the Company will use the proceeds from the offering. You start with the total amount of the offering and show how much it is reduced by the offering expenses. Next show how the Company expects to spend the Net Proceeds.

OFFERING EXPENSES. Calculate and disclose the direct costs associated with the offering. These costs usually include: commissions, legal and accounting, printing and copying, and advertising. Also disclose any miscellaneous fees and costs connected with the

offering, such as filing, consulting, impound and escrow accounts, travel, postage, and sales meeting expenses.

Carefully check the figures in this part of the Table to avoid mistakes. Make sure that the percentages listed for the offering expenses are based on a percentage of the Total Proceeds of the offering, not the Net Proceeds.

TOTAL NET PROCEEDS. In the second part of the Table, disclose in order of priority the use of the Net Proceeds. Check the figures and percentages. Make sure the percentages are based on the Net Proceeds of the offering.

SPECIFIC LINE ITEMS FOR THE USE OF NET PROCEEDS. Disclose the principal purposes for the use of the net proceeds and the amount to be used for each purpose. Consider using the following categories: leases, rent, utilities, payroll (by position or type), purchase or lease of specific items of equipment or inventory, payment of notes, accounts payable, etc., marketing or advertising costs, taxes, consulting fees, permits, professional fees, insurance and supplies. The categories you use will depend on the Company's plans. Replace general labels, such as marketing or research and development, with specific items, such as purchases or salaries.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS. Disclose all payments that the Company will make to any officer, director, principal stockholder, or key person. Include payments to acquire assets from or to reimburse an officer, director, stockholder, or key person for services already rendered, assets previously transferred, or moneys loaned or advanced. Make sure that your answer is consistent with the information in Items 108 and 109. If the Company has contractual agreements with its officers or employees to pay salaries, show those payments in this Item, unless the Company is profitable and has on-going operations.

ALLOCATION OF THE NET PROCEEDS TO UNSPECIFIED PURPOSES. This Disclosure Document is intended as a vehicle to raise capital for particular business purposes. The net proceeds should be allocated to specific business purposes following the Company's business plan. In the event that the Company is in the development stage and has no specific business plan or purpose, the Company may be disqualified from using this Disclosure Document under the NASAA Statement of Policy Regarding Small Company Offering Registrations (SCOR)(April 28, 1996). The Company may also be disqualified from using this Disclosure Document if it allocates a substantial amount of the offering proceeds to working capital or reserves.

ALLOCATION OF THE NET PROCEEDS TO ACQUISITION OF OTHER BUSINESSES. If the Company is raising capital for a merger or acquisition, you need to make specific disclosures about the planned acquisition. Simply reserving a substantial amount of the proceeds for "acquisition of other businesses" is not sufficiently specific and may cause the Company to be disqualified from using this Disclosure Document.

If the Company has identified the business it intends to acquire, identify the business and the status of any negotiations. Describe the business in detail and attach a copy of its financial statements to the Disclosure Document. Disclose whether the enterprise has business operations similar to the Company's core business and describe the business plan for expanding the business. You may need to discuss the acquisition in other sections of the Disclosure Document.

If the Company plans to use the offering proceeds to acquire another business but has not yet identified a specific enterprise, disclose the type of business the Company is seeking. Disclose whether the Company plans to acquire an enterprise with business operations similar to the Company's core business and describe the business plan for expanding the business. You may need to discuss the planned acquisition in other sections of the Disclosure Document.

SETTING THE MINIMUM OFFERING AMOUNT. State law often authorizes the state securities administrator to require the Company to set a minimum offering amount and to place all offering proceeds into an impound account at a bank until a minimum offering amount is raised. This ensures that the Company does not spend the offering proceeds until a sufficient amount is raised to carry out the Company's business objective. Most small businesses are asked to set a minimum offering amount. If the minimum offering amount is not reached, the offering will be cancelled.

How you set the minimum offering amount is important. If the Company needs the proceeds to purchase a specific piece of property, or to complete a project, you must set the minimum offering amount at (or above) the cost of the property or project plus the costs of the offering. In some cases the minimum amount will be 100% of the offering proceeds.

In other circumstances the amount of the required minimum may be difficult to determine. In these instances, assess the Company's cash needs under a variety of assumptions and provide for a minimum based on its cash needs for the next twelve months under the least favorable assumptions. In some cases the 12 month period may be too long or too short. You will need to make adjustments for the time it takes to conduct the offering. For many small companies the minimum offering amount is simply: How much money will the company need to stay in business over the next 12 months?

To set the minimum, carefully review each item in the Use of Proceeds Section and the Milestone Section and decide which expenditures and purchases the Company must make to get the business plan off the ground, or to keep it from totally failing. With the help of the Milestone Section, recheck the "critical path" to determine the minimum amount of proceeds necessary.

RIGHT TO CHANGE THE USE OF PROCEEDS. If the Company intends to change the use of proceeds after the offering has started, you must reserve the right to do so. You should discuss the alternatives under which the Company may alter the use of proceeds.

After the offering has started, a material change in the Use of Proceeds Section may require the Company to offer a refund of money to investors who purchased before the change. As a matter of course, material changes during the ongoing offering require the Company to change the Disclosure Document on file with the securities regulators.

31.	(a)	Is there a minimum amount of proceeds that must be raised before the Comp	any
uses	any of th	ne proceeds of this offering? [] Yes [] No	
31.	(b)	If yes, describe how the Company will use the minimum Net Proceeds of thi	is

Do not respond to this Item if you answered "no" to Item 31(a).

Give a detailed breakdown of each item listed in the "Use of Net Proceeds" part of the minimum offering column in the table in question 30. Describe each planned use in sequence and in order of priority.

Be specific. For example, identify a building or piece of property to be purchased or leased by its size, location, and the general terms of the purchase agreement or lease. Identify each specific piece of equipment the Company plans to purchase or lease and the general terms of the purchase or lease agreement. If the Company is hiring new personnel, identify each position by title, salary, and expected hiring date.

If the Company plans to use any material part of the proceeds to discharge indebtedness, describe the terms of that indebtedness, including the interest rates. If the Company incurred the indebtedness within the current or previous fiscal year, describe how it used the proceeds of the indebtedness.

Make sure that your answer to this Item is consistent with the information in Items 28 and 30.

31. (c) If the answer to Item 31(a) is "yes," describe how the Company will use the Net Proceeds of this offering that exceed the amount of the minimum offering proceeds.

Do not respond to this Item if you answered "no" to Item 31(a).

offering.

Give a detailed breakdown of how the Company plans to spend the offering proceeds that exceed the minimum offering amount. Describe each planned use in sequence and in order of priority. Be specific and make sure that your answer to this Item is consistent with the information in Items 28 and 30. See the discussion of Item 31(b) for more specific instructions.

31. (d) If the answer to Item 31(a) is "no," describe how the Company will use the Net Proceeds of this offering.

Do not respond to this Item if you answered "yes" to Item 31(a).

Give a detailed breakdown of each item listed in the Net Proceeds part of the Maximum offering column in the table in question 30. Describe each planned use in sequence and in order of priority. What expenses will the Company pay first, after the offering expenses? Be specific and make sure that your answer to this Item is consistent with the information in Items 28 and 30. See the discussion of Item 31(b) for more specific instructions.

When there is no minimum offering amount set, you may need to include a special risk factor in Item 1 with respect to the use of the proceeds and the ability of the Company to meet its business objectives. For instance, if only a small amount is raised, all or substantially all of the offering proceeds may be applied to cover the offering expenses and the Company will not otherwise benefit from the offering.

32.	(a)	Will the Company use other funds,	together wit	th the offering proceeds, to fund
any p	roject o	r activity identified in Item 31?	[] Yes	[] No

- 32. (b) If yes, state the amounts and sources of the other funds.
- 32. (c) Indicate whether the availability of the funds is firm or contingent. If contingent, explain.

FIRM OR CONTINGENT FUNDING. In this Item disclose whether the source of the other funds is firm or contingent. You should disclose material conditions or contingencies even if the agreements are called firm commitments. For example, the bank may have promised its loan only if the Company completes the securities offering or hires a specific manager. In the case of a bank line of credit, you must disclose that it is due on demand or short notice and may not be available when the Company needs it. Likewise leases may be terminated, sales of assets may fall through, and private investment loans may never be made.

What will the Company do or what will happen if the Company does not receive the other funds? You should disclose whether or not the Company has a back up plan.

If the funds are critical to the business objectives disclosed or the continued operation of the business, include the contingent nature of the financing as a risk factor.

NOTE: See the answer to Item 70 for information about proceeds used to compensate sales agents. See the answer to Items 108 and 109 for information about proceeds used to purchase assets from officers, directors, key persons, or principal stockholders or their associates or to reimburse them for services previously provided or moneys borrowed.

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTE: The Company has adjusted all numbers in this section to reflect any stock splits or recapitalizations.

GENERAL

33. What were net, after-tax earnings for the last fiscal year? (If losses, show in parenthesis.)

Total \$
Per share \$

EARNINGS PER SHARE. You should first disclose the total earnings (or losses) of the Company and then disclose the earnings (or losses) on a per share basis.

Sample Calculation: Earnings per Share = Net after Tax Earnings ÷ Outstanding

Shares = \$183,246/863,020 = \$0.22/Share

In disclosing the per share data, you must include all outstanding shares. In determining what shares to include, you should include the shares outstanding prior to the offering and should not include shares being offered in this offering. For the purposes of this Item you are required to treat all outstanding options, warrants and rights as exercised. You use the exercise price in the option or warrant agreement to determine the number of shares to be issued. If the Company has issued a significant number of shares during the year, you should check with your accountant to determine whether a weighted average per share would be more appropriate. If so, you should disclose that the number reflects the weighted average per share.

FISCAL YEAR. You should disclose the after-tax earnings for the last <u>fiscal</u> year. The net after-tax earnings for the last fiscal year should be available from the Company's income statement. Even though the Company may not have operated for a full fiscal year, you must still disclose, its earnings or losses. The disclosure for this Item should reflect the fact that the Company has not been in existence for a full fiscal year, either by setting forth the dates in a parenthetical or by narrative. A typical disclosure might read: "The Company commenced operations in June 1999. The losses as of October 31, 1999 totaled \$195,000."

INTERIM ACTIVITY. If operations have substantially changed since the end of the last fiscal year, you also should show those interim earnings or losses.

CHANGES IN FORM OF ENTITY. If the Company recently has reorganized or changed the form of its business entity, such as from a sole proprietorship or partnership, you should show the changes from the old entity to the new one.

LACK OF OPERATIONS. If the Company is a start-up or development stage company that has had no operations, state: "The Company has not yet operated."

Accounting Review. Net after tax earnings must be based on generally accepted accounting principles.

34.	If the Company had profits, show offering price as a multiple of earnings.		
Net Af	Offering Price Per Share fter-Tax Earnings Per Share for Last Fiscal Y	= Year	(price/earnings multiple)

OFFERING PRICE/EARNINGS MULTIPLE. The price/earnings multiple simply reflects the ratio of the offering price of the common stock (or other equity security) to the Company's historical earnings. To respond to this Item use the earnings per share calculation in Item 33 and take into consideration some of the other points discussed under Item 33. The price/earnings multiple must be based on financial statements prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles for the Company's last fiscal year. If you disclosed interim earnings in Item 33, you should complete the price/earnings multiple for the interim period.

<u>Sample Calculation:</u> **Price/Earnings Multiple** = Offering Price per share/Net After Tax Earnings per Share \$5.00/\$0.22 = 22.7x

If the Company has no earnings, you cannot calculate the price/earnings multiple. In this event, you should disclose that the Company was not profitable.

CAPITALIZATION

35. Indicate the capitalization of the Company as of the most recent balance sheet date, and as adjusted to reflect the sale of the minimum and maximum amount of securities in this offering and the use of the net proceeds from this offering.

	Amount Outstanding		
Debt:	As of:/_ (date)	As Adjusted Minimum	<u>Maximum</u>
Short-term debt			
(average interest rate%)	\$	\$	\$
Long-term debt			
(average interest rate%)	\$	\$	\$
Total debt	\$	\$	\$
Stockholders equity (deficit):			
Preferred stock - par or stated value (by class of preferred – in order of preferences)	\$ \$ \$	\$ \$ \$	\$ \$ \$
	Ť	Ť	•
Common stock - par or stated value	\$	\$	\$
Additional paid in capital	\$	\$	\$
Retained earnings (deficit)	\$	\$	\$
Total stockholders equity (deficit)			
	\$	\$	\$
Total Capitalization	\$	\$	<u>\$</u>

Number of preferred shares				
authorized to be outstanding:				
Class of Preferred	Number of Shares Authorized	Par Value Per Share \$ \$ \$		
Number of common shares authorized: shares.				
Par or stated value per share, if ar	ny: \$			
Number of common shares reserve xercise of options, warrants or ri	.	uirements or for the issuance upon		
-				

CAPITALIZATION TABLE. In the format provided, you must set forth the short and long term debts owed by the Company, equity of the stockholders, paid in capital for common and preferred shares, earnings retained or earnings deficits, and the number of preferred and common shares authorized. You may want to ask your accountant to help you with this Item.

COMPARISON TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. The figures in the Capitalization Table must be consistent with those in the Company's most recent Financial Statements. If the Company has mandatory redeemable preferred stock, include the amount of the redemption in "long term debt" instead of under the preferred stock heading and so indicate by footnote to that category in the Capitalization Table.

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. In addition to comparing the figures in the Capitalization Table to the Financial Statements, you should check whether the Company's balance sheet accurately reflects the Company's capitalization in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. You or your accountant should consider whether debt is correctly classified as short-term or long-term, whether leases should be capitalized, and whether a corporate combination should be treated as a pooling of interest or as a purchase. See the Financial Statements in Item 118.

REVIEW OF AUTHORIZED CAPITAL. To answer the portion of this Item concerning the number of shares authorized, you should refer to the articles of incorporation or

organization of the Company, and any amendments to the articles. Make sure your answer to this Item is consistent with the current articles.

DILUTION

36. (a)	The price of the securities in this offering has been arbitrarily determined.
[] Yes	[] No

RISK BASED ON ARBITRARY PRICING. If you have not done financial or market analysis to arrive at the price, you should answer yes, that the selection of the offering price was arbitrary. Even if you have considered certain financial indications of value, such as net tangible book value per share or earnings per share, you still may want to disclose that pricing is arbitrary.

If your answer is yes, disclose in Item 1, Risk Factors, that the Company arbitrarily decided the offering price. The following are two examples of such risk factor disclosures:

Arbitrary Offering Price. The offering price of \$5.00 per share was determined by the Company and the selling agent. The price bears no relationship to established value criteria such as net tangible assets, or a multiple of earnings per share and accordingly should not be considered an indication of the actual value of the Company.

Arbitrary Offering Price. The price for the shares of stock of this offering has been established in an arbitrary manner and is not related to net tangible assets per share or any price previously paid for the Company's stock by others. The price is 10 times that paid by the founders of the Company. The offering price may not be justified by the ultimate results of operations of the Company.

36. (b) If no, explain the basis on which the price of the securities was determined.

Disclose the various factors you considered in arriving at the offering price. Typical factors include: the established public trading market that dictates the price; the net tangible book value per share or the earnings per share (if the Company has any earnings); the stock prices of other similar companies; or the amount of money required by the Company to fund the product or project.

NET TANGIBLE BOOK VALUE PER SHARE. The net tangible book value of a company is the accounting value of all assets on the balance sheet of the Company after subtracting all liabilities and all intangible assets. Intangible assets that appear on the balance sheet usually include such items as patents, copyrights, franchises, trademarks, operating rights and goodwill. Various costs incurred in the formation of the Company are also treated as intangible assets.

GAAP. You must base net tangible book value on the Company's most recent balance sheet prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied. Calculating the net tangible book value depends upon the integrity of the balance sheet. If the assets or liabilities are improperly characterized, the net tangible book value may be materially inaccurate.

COMPUTING NET TANGIBLE BOOK VALUE PER SHARE. To compute the net tangible book value per share of common stock, you divide the total number of common shares outstanding immediately prior to the offering, by the net tangible book value related to common stockholders. The net tangible book value shall be computed based on the latest balance sheet.

You should take into consideration any shares issued between the date of the last balance sheet and the time of the offering when determining the number of outstanding shares.

<u>Sample Calculation:</u> Net Tangible Book Value per Share =

Net Tangible Assets:	\$827,115
Less Total Liabilities:	<u>\$684,260</u>
Net Tangible Book Value:	\$142,855
Shares Outstanding (Before Offering):	524,920
\$142,855/524,920 =	\$0.27/share

PREFERRED STOCK. If the Company has issued preferred stock, you must determine the amount of the total net tangible assets (capital) attributable to preferred stockholders. Subtract the net tangible assets attributable to preferred stockholders from the total net tangible assets. The remainder is the net tangible assets available to common stockholders.

37.	7. (b) For the minimum offering:				
	The net tangible book value per share after the minimum offering will be:				
	The amount of increase in net tangible book value per share as a result				
		of receipt of cash from purchasers in this offering will be:	\$		
	The di	llution per share to purchasers will be:	\$		
37.	(c)	For the maximum offering:			
		et tangible book value per share after the maximum offering will be:	\$		
		mount of increase in net tangible book value per share as a result eipt of cash from purchasers in this offering will be:	\$		
		ilution per share to purchasers will be:	\$		
	THC U	nution per share to purchasers will be.	Ψ		
38.		ch share purchased in this offering a purchaser will pay \$	_but will		
receive offerir	e a shar	re representing only \$ in net tangible book value, if the minieved, or \$, if the maximum offering is achieved.	nımum		
OHEH	, if the maximum offering is achieved.				
		fference between the amount a purchaser pays for a share and the am	ount of net		
tangible book value that share represents is the dilution to the purchaser.					
39.		ble, compare the existing stockholders' percentage ownership in the onsideration paid for that ownership with that of purchasers in this offer.			
			Average		
			Price		
.			Per Share		
Existing holders; New Purchasers:					
Minimum offering					
		num offering			
	1,16/111				

In this Table you compare the effective cash cost of the shares held by existing stockholders to the contribution of the purchasers in this offering. The calculation of the average price per share should be on a fully diluted basis.

40. Using the offering price of these securities, what value is the Company's management attributing to the entire Company before the offering?

EVALUATION OF THE COMPANY. Multiply the total number of shares outstanding before the offering by the offering price. For the purpose of this calculation assume that all rights to convert into the shares of the Company have been exercised.

NOTE: You should consider carefully whether the Company actually has this value at the present time. Some issues you should think about include: (1) the risks to which the Company is subject before it achieves success (see Item 1, Risk Factors); (2) the exercise prices of outstanding options (see Item 101); and (3) the prices that the Company's officers, directors, and principal stockholders paid for their shares (see Items 104 and 105).

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF CERTAIN RELEVANT FACTORS

41.	Is the Company having or does the	e Company	anticipate having	within the next 12 months
any ca	sh flow or liquidity problems?	[] Yes	[] No	If yes, explain.

CASH FLOW PROBLEMS. If the Company is having current cash flow problems, you need to explain what is causing those problems and what the Company intends to do about them. If the Company anticipates having any cash flow problems in the next twelve months, you should explain the anticipated problems and what the Company intends to do about them.

In completing this Item, you should focus on the possibility that everything will not go according to plan. You also should consider whether the minimum offering amount is adequate to give the Company a reasonable chance of surviving a cash flow problem within the next twelve months.

PREDICTING FUTURE CASH FLOW. To predict whether the Company will have future cash flow problems, you need to do a cash flow analysis. You should start by considering the Company's stage of development and the extent to which it intends to change its operations in the near term. How fast will it burn up the money from the offering together with any funds available to it from other sources? When will the Company begin production of its product? When will it begin to sell its product or its services to the public? What level of sales must it achieve to reach its break even point?

You should be prepared to discuss your fixed costs. Rent is often a fixed cost as is depreciation of equipment. Variable costs are much more difficult to estimate for a Company that has not begun production. You should estimate your variable costs.

Until the Company can pay its expenses from its own operations, it will need some other source of funds to pay those expenses. Salaries are one of the main expenses the Company will have to pay. The discussion of the Company's work force in answer to Items 16, 17 and 18 should provide indications as to its cash needs. Items 83 and 84, dealing with compensation to officers, directors, and key persons, also are relevant. If officers and directors will be drawing salaries from the proceeds of the offering, how long will they be allowed to do so at their proposed rates of pay?

You should discount the possibility of substantial contributions from operations to the Company unless the results of the Company's prior operations demonstrate its earning power. Even if the Company is currently profitable in limited operations, you should consider the effect of any proposed expansion of the scope of those operations, including the addition of new product lines and new processes on the Company's cash flow. Coordinate the prediction of future cash flow with Items 28 and 29, Milestones.

42. (a)	Is the Company in default of the terms of any note, loan, lease, or other				
indebtedness of	indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring the Company to make payments?				
[] Yes	[] No				
42. (b)	If yes, explain, identifying the creditor stating the amount in default or the term				
that the Comp	any has not complied with, and describing any consequences to the Company				
resulting from	the default.				
43. Are a s	significant amount of the Company's trade payables more than 90 days old?				
[]Yes	[] No				
44. Is the 0	Company subject to any unsatisfied judgments, liens, or settlement obligations?				
[] Yes	[] No If yes, state the amounts.				

PLANS TO RESOLVE EXISTING OVERDUE OBLIGATIONS. If the Company has existing overdue obligations to persons other than insiders that it will not pay before the completion of the offering, you may want to include in the amount of the offering the sum necessary to pay these obligations. In this case you would also disclose the payment of the obligations in the use of proceeds for the offering. As to the obligations to insiders, you would disclose any plan to defer payment on these obligations.

Describe the Company's plans to resolve the problems identified in Items 41 - 44.

45.

46.	(a)	Do the Company's financial statements show losses from operations?
	[] Yes	[] No

46. (b) If yes, explain the causes underlying these losses and what steps the Company has taken or is taking to address these causes.

Causes of Losses from operations. If the Company has shown losses from operations, you need to explain the causes of the losses and how the Company has or expects to address these causes. Why does the Company believe that its losses will not continue? Is the Company going to change its competitive strategy? Is the Company going to introduce a new product? Is it going to change its manufacturing or service delivery process? Is it going to trim its general and administrative expenses? Is it going to launch a new marketing program to attempt to achieve a sales level that will allow it to break even? It may be useful to review your answers to the Business and Properties Section, especially Items 13, 14, and 15.

This Item is not applicable if the Company's Financial Statements do not show losses from operations. You should, however, be sure that you are properly applying the definition of "losses from operations." Generally, the definition means the loss before interest expense, interest income, or gains, and losses on sales of assets, and other extraordinary items.

If one or more of the Company's promoters has operated a predecessor or similar business that failed or was abandoned, address how the Company intends to avoid a similar fate. The probability of continuing losses requires a special risk factor disclosure in Item 1.

- 47. (a) Describe any trends in the Company's historical operating results.
- 47. (b) Indicate any changes now occurring in the underlying economics of the Company's business which, in the opinion of Management, will have a significant impact upon the Company's results of operations within the next 12 months.
- 47. (c) Describe the probable impact on the Company.

47. (d) Describe how will the Company will deal with this impact.

TRENDS. This Item focuses on how the Company's business plan addresses the effects of external forces (primarily trends in the Company's industry) on the Company's operating results. Generally you will be looking for matters that either would have an impact on future operations and have not had an impact in the past or that have had an impact in the past and are not expected to have an impact in the future. This Item is especially important for companies in industries experiencing rapid change, whether that change is technological, regulatory, or market related.

If the Company has financial statements available for more than one fiscal period, you can compare the operating results to look for trends. You also may use general economic trends to answer this Item. For example, if the Company offers luxury goods, it may have difficulty surviving an economic downturn. How does the Company intend to address this type of problem?

RAISING ADDITIONAL FUNDS. If the Company cannot satisfy its cash needs for the next twelve months, you must disclose the consequences of not having sufficient cash. Include a special risk factor in Item 1, the Risk Factor Section. If the Company's answer involves raising further funds, you must disclose in detail the source or sources of these funds. If the Company will borrow money from a financial institution or other lender, disclose the details of the lender's commitment. If the Company does not have such a commitment, you must disclose that there is no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain a loan.

If the Company intends to use internally generated funds to provide additional necessary funds during the next twelve months, the Company's current operating results must support this claim.

If the Company plans to raise funds through the sale of additional shares or upon the exercise of outstanding warrants, you must state that there is no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully conduct such an offering or that the warrants will be exercised.

If the Company contemplates raising additional funds through the sale of assets, you must state that there is no assurance that the Company will be able to sell its assets at prices sufficient to raise the needed funds.

48.	(a)	Will the proceeds fro	om this offering and any available funds identified in Item 32,
satisfy	the C	Company's cash requiren	ments for the 12 month period after it receives the offering
procee	ds?	[] Yes	[] No

48. (b) If no, explain how the Company plans to satisfy its cash requirements. State whether it will be necessary to raise additional funds. State the source of the additional funds, if known.

INTERNALLY GENERATED FUNDS. Another source of financing may be internally generated funds (i.e., the (future) cash flow of the business.) If the Company has been operating at a steady profit for many years, it may be realistic to rely on internally generated funds combined with the offering proceeds to accomplish a further business objective. You may include future profits in your response to this Item only if the Company has a reasonable basis to support the disclosure and you discuss the assumptions and limitations on which the disclosure is based.

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS. Describe material sources of other funds that will be employed in conjunction with the offering funds. The Company may combine investor funds with other funding sources. Some of the typical outside sources of financing: bank loans and lines of credit; asset sales; lease financing; and consignment inventories.

In some cases the true capital needs of the Company are much larger than the maximum offering amount. This frequently occurs when the Company is relying on Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 504 of Regulation D that limits the Company's securities offering to one million dollars. To make up for the short fall the Company may attempt to raise additional amounts through other methods of financing, such as bank loans or private financing. When the other financing the Company intends to rely on is concurrent with the securities offering, you should enlarge, Item 30, the Use of Proceeds Section, to include these funds as part of the Total Use of Net Proceeds. This will correctly reflect both the need for and the use of those funds. This will require adjusting Item 30.

MATERIALITY. Disclose "material" amounts of funds from other sources. Generally, you should consider any source of financing that is 10% or more of the net offering proceeds to be material. Financing sources of less than this may also be material if they are critical to the Company's operation or business objective. For example, if bank financing is necessary to make a purchase in conjunction with funds from the use of proceeds, the amount (regardless of the percentage of the net offering proceeds) would be material, and you would need to disclose the financing in this Item. Also if the amount of outside financing is an item disclosed in the Company's Milestone Section, you should treat it as material. In disclosing the sources of financing, such as bank loans or lines of credit, disclose not only the amounts, but also the terms and conditions and timing of the receipt of the funds by the Company.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OFFERED

GENERAL

49.	The securities	being offered are:
	[] []	Common Stock Preferred or Preference Stock
	[]	Notes, Debentures, or Bonds
	[]	Limited Liability Company Membership Interests
	[]	Units of two or more types of securities, composed of:
	[]	Other (specify):

If the company is offering more than one type of security or the security has unusual features that make it hard to classify, you cannot simply use the name the company has chosen for the security but must look behind that name to see how the security will function. An example is if the shares offered are called preferred stock, but the shares are actually inferior to the company's common stock in dividend or liquidation preferences. Disclose the specific preferences that the security has (and doesn't have).

PREFERRED STOCK. Normally, call stock "preferred stock" only if it has an unqualified preference over all outstanding classes of stock of the company as to both liquidation and dividends. Disclose if the dividends on preferred stock are cumulative. (See discussion of Item 54, Cumulative Dividends.) If the stock offered has certain preferences over some but not all outstanding classes of stock as to liquidation or dividends, you may refer to it as preference stock. In this case you must prominently disclose the exact nature of the preference and any limitations on the preference granted.

DEBT SECURITIES. For debt offerings, you should check the box "Notes, Debentures or Bonds" regardless of what the Company calls the debt instrument. In responding to Item 56, Interest Rate and Item 57, Maturity Date, discuss all the special characteristics of the debt being offered. You should be very careful when disclosing that a debt security is insured or guaranteed to ensure that those claims are accurate.

LLC Membership Interest. If the Company is a Limited Liability Company, check this box. Summarize the material provisions of a Limited Liability Company' governing agreements under Item 11, Other Material Factors.

UNITS OF MORE THAN ONE TYPE OF SECURITY. If the Company is offering securities consisting of two or more types of securities, include an explanation of whether, and if so, when and under what conditions, the parts of the unit can be transferred independently of each other.

OTHER TYPES OF SECURITIES. If the Company is offering a security other than a stock, a debt instrument or a membership interest (such as an interest in a cooperative), disclose the special features of the security being offered.

50.	These securities have:				
	Yes No				
	[] [] Cumulative voting rights		Cumulative voting rights		
	[]	[]	Other special voting rights		
	[] Preemptive rights to purchase any new issue of shares		Preemptive rights to purchase any new issue of shares		
	[]	Preference as to dividends or interest			
	[] [] Preference upon liquidation		Preference upon liquidation		
	[]	[]	Anti-dilution rights		
	[] Other special rights or preferences (specify):				
Explai	in any y	es answ	vers.		

To help you respond to this Item, you or your attorney should review the statute under which the Company was organized as well as the Company's corporate or governance documents. Incorporation statutes typically set default provisions for voting rights and preemptive rights. If the Company has not specified particular rights for the securities being issued, the rights will generally be those specified by statute. Disclose the rights of holders of preferred stock, notes or other securities being offered. You may do this by summarizing the charter, bylaw or other provision that gives rise to those rights.

LACK OF RIGHTS. You also should state if the securities offered lack any rights typically granted to securities of the type offered. For example, if the securities offered are called "common shares" but lack equal voting rights, you should provide information about the shares that have the voting preference.

ANTI-DILUTION. Anti-dilution rights generally provide that the conversion price of a security that is convertible into common shares will be adjusted if the Company issues additional common shares at a price that is less than the conversion price. If the securities carry anti-dilution rights, describe the anti-dilution formula applied and why the rights might be beneficial to the investor. If the securities carry a combination of different anti-dilution provisions, describe that combination and the relative benefits to the investor.

51.	Are there any restrictions on dividends or other distributions?	[] Yes	[] No
If yes,	describe.		

Describe any restrictions to be imposed at the termination of the offering as well as those in place at the time the offering begins. For example, the Company may intend to use all or part of the offering proceeds to acquire a business and the seller of the business may be taking a loan back. If the loan agreement includes any restrictions on dividends, disclose those restrictions in responding to this Item even though the restrictions will not be in force until after the offering.

52. If yes,	Are the securities convertible? state conversion price or formula.	[] Yes	[] No
	Date when conversion becomes effe	ctive:/	/
	Date when conversion expires:	//_	

This Item applies to any security convertible into another security at the option of the investor. A typical example is a note or preferred stock that is convertible into the Company's common stock. Describe securities convertible at the option of the Company in your response to Item 55, Preferred Stock) or Item 60, Debt Securities.

If the Company is issuing warrants that are part of a unit, disclose those warrants as convertible securities even if the warrants are or will be traded separately from the other securities to be issued.

The "date when conversion becomes effective" is the first date when the purchaser may convert the securities into other securities. Similarly, the "date when conversion expires" means the last date on which the purchaser may convert the securities into other securities. If the purchaser becomes entitled to convert the securities or loses the right to convert the securities because an event has occurred, describe that event.

53. Describe any resale restrictions on the securities and when the restrictions will terminate.

Securities regulatory agencies or the Company itself may impose resale restrictions for a variety of reasons. Resale restrictions affect an investor's ability to resell the security and, therefore, the value of the security. Be thorough and accurate when you describe the restrictions so that the investor is aware of any resale limitations before purchasing the security.

SCOR Manual Revised: September 28, 1999 **LEGEND CONDITIONS.** Legends are statements printed on the certificate representing the security that describe resale and other restrictions. Legend conditions inform securities purchasers of these restrictions. Many jurisdictions have specific requirements concerning where and how the legend conditions are to be placed on the certificate. You should be familiar with these requirements before placing the legend on the securities.

OFFERING TO LIMITED GROUP. The Company may want to restrict ownership of the securities. For example, it may want to limit ownership to employees, independent contractors, or franchisees of the Company, property owners in a certain area, members of a social organization, etc. If the group that can buy the securities is restricted, disclose this as a resale restriction because it will affect whether an investor will be able to find a member of that group when the investor wants to sell the securities.

RESTRICTIONS IMPOSED BY SECURITIES REGULATION. If a securities regulatory agency imposes any restrictions on the sale or resale of these securities, disclose those restrictions.

RESTRICTIONS FOR INTRASTATE OFFERINGS. If you only want to sell the securities within one state and intend to rely on an exemption from registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an intrastate offering, you must disclose the restrictions imposed on the securities by federal securities legislation.

RESTRICTIONS IMPOSED BY OTHER AUTHORITIES. Laws the Company must comply with may restrict the resale of the securities. For example, you may need to restrict transfer to meet Internal Revenue Code requirements (such as for an S corporation or a limited liability company), or to satisfy regulatory bodies governing the Company's industry. A licensing authority, for example, may restrict the resale of the securities so that the authority can check the background of new stockholders to determine whether they have any criminal history.

REQUIRED RESALE TO COMPANY. If the Company requires that shares be sold back to it, disclose the resale price or formula with a description of how any formula operates. If the stockholder is guaranteed a return, answer the following questions: Will the Company set aside a reserve for this purpose? What is the basis for predicting that it will have the cash to make the payment? Is this basis reasonable?

REQUIREMENT THAT COMPANY CONSENT TO RESALE. If stockholders wishing to transfer their shares must obtain the consent of the Company to the transfer, specify the conditions under which the Company will consent to a transfer.

PREFERRED STOCK

If the securities being	offered are Preference of	· Preferred stock:

If the Company is not offering preferred or preference stock, state that you will not be responding to Items 54 and 55. Otherwise, respond to these Items.

54.	Are unpaid dividends cumulative?	[]Yes	[] No	

Dividends are cumulative if, when dividends are not paid when due, these unpaid dividends accumulate and must be paid before any dividends may be paid on the Company's common shares. If the dividends are not cumulative, disclose this in Item 1, Risk Factors, and on the Cover Page.

55.	(a)	Are the securities callable?	[] Yes	[] No	If yes, describe.	
55.	(b)	Are the securities redeemabl	le?	[] Yes	[] No	
If yes, describe, including redemption prices.						

A security is callable if the Company has the option to repurchase it. You should explain the terms and conditions under which the Company may call the securities. A security is redeemable if the Company is required to repurchase it. You should explain the terms and conditions under which an investor may redeem the securities, including the redemption price.

If the Company is required to repurchase preferred stock (rather than having an option to do that), you should treat the preferred stock as if it were debt and should answer Item 65, Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

DEBT SECURITIES

If securities being offered ar	

If the Company is not offering notes or other types of debt securities, state that you will not be responding to Items 56 to 64. Otherwise, respond to these Items.

56.	What is the interest rate on the debt securities?%
If the i	nterest rate is variable or there are multiple interest rates, describe.

If the Company is offering securities with a variable interest rate, and the rate is based on the rate of a financial institution, clearly identify the institution and the name of the rate. If the rate is to be adjusted at intervals, explain when and how the Company will adjust the rate. Even after disclosing that the rate is based on a specific institution or index, you should choose a method of adjustment in the event that the rate base is discontinued. Describe when interest will be paid to investors (for example, monthly, quarterly, annually, or on the maturity of the debt security.)

SCOR Manual Revised: September 28, 1999

57.	What is the maturity date?/
If the s	securities will have serial maturity dates, describe.

Debt instruments have serial maturity dates if a predetermined amount of the principal becomes due and payable at specified intervals or if individual instruments have different due dates or redemption dates. Explain the due dates for the instruments and the method by which the Company expects to pay the instrument when due. A prospective investor should know the date his or her instrument will fall due or be considered for redemption.

58.	Is there a sinking fund?	[]Yes	[] No	If yes, describe.	
		[]	[]		/

Sinking funds are established so that the Company can make periodic payments for the purpose of accumulating funds to retire a debt issue. The Company uses the funds (as specified in the indenture or contract establishing the fund) for periodic partial redemption of debt, for periodic retirement of serial bonds, or for the repayment of the debt at maturity. Describe the payment schedule, how the fund may be used, and whether the Company or an independent trustee will administer the fund.

If the required payments to the fund are not of a sufficient size and regularity for the Company to pay the debt as agreed, you should disclose this. Even if the required payments would be adequate, disclose whether the Company's financial position will permit it to make these payments.

59.	Is there a trust indenture?	[] Yes	[] No
If yes,	state the name, address, and to	elephone numb	er of Trustee.

A trust indenture establishes a trust relationship in which a trustee is appointed to represent the interests of the debt holders. You should determine if securities regulators will require that the Company enter into a trust indenture.

Disclose the material terms of any trust indenture and discuss what protections the trust will provide to investors. The federal Trust Indenture Act of 1939 requires trust indentures to meet certain standards.

If there will be no trust indenture in connection with the issuance of debt, you should disclose in Item 1, Risk Factors, the lack of a trust indenture and the lack of an independent trustee representing the interests of the debt holders.

SCOR Manual Page - 54

60.	(a)	Are the securities callable?	[] Yes	[] No	If yes, describe.		
60.	(b)	Are the securities redeemabl	e?	[] Yes	[] No		
If yes	If yes, describe, including redemption prices.						

A security is callable if the Company has the option to repurchase it. You should explain the terms and conditions under which the Company may call the securities. A security is redeemable if the Company is required to repurchase it. You should explain the terms and conditions under which an investor may redeem the securities, including the redemption price.

61.	Are the securities secured by real or personal property?	[] Yes	[] No	
If yes,	describe.			

If the securities are secured by property, describe fully both the property and the security arrangement, including the value of the property. Disclose if the property will be purchased with the proceeds of the offering, and whether the purchase was made from Officers, Directors, or affiliates of the Company.

You should emphasize the degree to which any secured interest in property protects the debt holders. Disclose if there are any other creditors with secured interests in the property superior to or equal to the interest of the debt holders? If so, disclose details of the prior claim. You should disclose any arrangement that allows the Company to further encumber the property and to what degree. Disclose if the secured interest of the debt holders in the property has been perfected (through filing of a financing statement or otherwise under the Uniform Commercial Code) or if it will be perfected prior to the release of the offering proceeds from escrow. If not, disclose that, both in the answer to this Item and in Item 1, Risk Factors.

62. (a)	Are the secur	ities subordinate in right of payment of principal or interest?
[] Yes	[] No	If yes, explain the terms of the subordination.

Securities are subordinated if the right of the holders to receive payment is subordinated to prior payment of other indebtedness of the Company. Disclose fully the terms of any subordination agreement or subordination clause in an indenture or agreement. You may need to disclose in Item 1, Risk Factors, that the debt offered is subordinated.

In addition, discuss the protections, if any, given to the purchasers in the present offering if the Company incurs future debt. Protections might include limitations on

additional borrowing or a pledge that if the Company incurs any secured debt it will provide equivalent security to the holders of the debt offered under this Disclosure Document. If the Company will not provide investors with significant protection against subsequently incurred debt, you may need to disclose that in Item 1, Risk Factors.

62. (b) How much currently outstanding indebtedness of the Company is senior to the securities in right of payment of interest or principal? \$

Check the figures here against the Company's most recent Financial Statements and the notes to those statements.

63. How much currently outstanding indebtedness ranks equally in right of payment with the securities? \$

Check the figures here against the Company's most recent Financial Statements and the notes to those statements.

64. How much currently outstanding indebtedness is junior (subordinated) to the securities?

Check the figures here against the Company's most recent Financial Statements and the notes to those statements.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

65. (a) If the Company had earnings during its last fiscal year, show the ratio of earnings to fixed charges on an actual and pro forma basis for that fiscal year.

| Actual | Last Fiscal | Interim | Pro Forma | Year | Period | Minimum | Maximum | Maximum | Pro Forma | Minimum | Maximum | Pro Forma | Period | Minimum | Maximum | Pro Forma | Period | Pe

65. (b) If no earnings, show "Fixed Charges" only

If the Company is not offering debt securities or preferred stock that the Company is required to repurchase, state that you will not be completing this Item.

"Fixed Charges" means interest (including capitalized interest), amortization of debt discount, premium and expense, preferred stock dividend requirements of majority owned subsidiary, and the portion of rental expense that can be demonstrated to be representative of the interest factor in the particular case. The pro forma ratio of earnings to fixed charges should include incremental interest expense as a result of the offering of the securities.

"Earnings" means pretax income from continuing operations plus fixed charges and capitalized interest.

If the Company cannot show a ratio of earnings to fixed charges, on a pro forma basis, of at least 1:1, the Company may not have sufficient earnings to fulfill its obligations to debt holders. Unless the Company has other means to repay investors, you must disclose the Company's limited ability to repay its obligations in Item 1, Risk Factors.

You may find the following sample calculation of earnings/fixed charges ratio helpful to you in completing this calculation.

Assume that earnings for the last fiscal year were \$300,000 Assume that fixed charges were \$50,000

Assume that the Company is issuing debt that will require it to pay \$100,000 per year if the minimum amount of the offering is sold and \$200,000 per year if the maximum amount of the offering is sold.

Assume that there are no other changes to fixed charges and that earnings do not change as a result of the offering.

Sample Table. The actual numbers for the Company will be different.

	Actua	<u>al_</u>	<u>ProForma</u>		
	Last Fiscal_ Year	Interim Period	<u>Minimum</u>	<u>Maximum</u>	
"Earnings" = Fixed Charges"	300,000 50,000	150,000 25,000	300,000 150,000	300,000 250,000	
Ratio	6:1	6:1	2:1	1.2:1	

NOTE: See the Financial Statements and especially the Statement of Cash Flow. Exercise care in interpreting the significance of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges as a measure of the "coverage" of debt service. The existence of earnings does not necessarily mean that the Company will have cash available at any given time to pay its obligations. See Items 41 - 48. Prospective purchasers should not rely on this ratio as a guarantee that they will receive the stated return or the repayment of their principal.

HOW THESE SECURITIES WILL BE OFFERED AND SOLD

COMPANY SALESPERSONS

66.	Provide the following information for each officer, director, or Company employee who
intends	s to offer or sell the securities:

Use the format in 66(a) to identify the officers, directors, and/or Company employees that will be offering or selling the securities. Repeat the format as often as necessary, using (a), (b), (c), etc. to label each person.

66.	(a)	Name:
		Title:
		Address:
		Telephone Number:

67. Describe any compensation that the Company will pay each person in addition to his or her customary salary and compensation.

Include cash, securities, contracts, bonuses, rewards or other consideration as part of the compensation.

Contact the securities regulators for information concerning licensing requirements and other related matters.

OTHER SALES PERSONS AND FINDERS

68. Provide the following information for each salesperson who is not an officer, director, or employee of the Company:

Use the format in 68(a) to identify the persons that will be offering or selling the securities who are not officers, directors, and/or employees of the Company. Repeat the format as often as necessary, using (a), (b), (c), etc. to label each person.

68.	(a)	Name:
		Company:
		Address:
		Telephone Number:

SALESPERSON AND BROKER-DEALER DISCIPLINARY HISTORY. Check the disciplinary history of each person the Company intends to use as a salesperson or broker-dealer. You may determine whether a sales person or broker-dealer has disciplinary history by contacting the appropriate securities regulatory agency.

BROKER-DEALER LICENSING. If the salesperson the Company is planning to use to sell the offering is not affiliated with a licensed broker-dealer, the securities regulator may require the sales person to be registered as a broker-dealer. If the salesperson is a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (NASD), file the Disclosure Document with NASD Regulation. NASD Regulation will review compensation to be paid to the salesperson to determine whether it complies with NASD rules. The jurisdictions in which you want to sell your offering cannot register the offering until NASD Regulation has completed its review. NASD Regulation will need time to complete its review, so you should file the Disclosure Document with NASD Regulation at the same time you file it with the jurisdictions in which you want to sell the offering.

69. Provide the following information for each person who is a finder:

Use the format in 69(a) to identify the finders that will be assisting in the offer or sale the securities. Repeat the format as often as necessary, using (a), (b), (c), etc. to label each person

69.	(a)	Name:
		Company:
		Address:
		Telephone Number:

"Finders" are persons who are compensated for acting as intermediaries in obtaining salespersons or otherwise making introductions to help the offering succeed. Certain securities regulators may require finders to be registered as securities salespersons.

70. Describe all compensation that the Company will pay to each person identified in Items 68 and 69.

Disclose compensation as well as contractual and indemnification arrangements. Include cash, securities, contracts, bonuses, rewards or other consideration as part of the compensation, in addition to the cash commission that you disclosed as a percent of the offering price on the cover page of this Disclosure Document. Indicate whether the Company will indemnify the sales persons or finders against liabilities under the securities laws and summarize the terms of any agreement to provide that indemnity.

Disclose all contracts between sales persons and the Company whether in the form of underwriting agreements with broker-dealers, employment contracts, or contracts with independent contractors. Where the Company is compensating them with additional securities, disclose.

71. Describe any material relationships between any of these sales persons or finders and the Company or its management.

Discuss any material relationships between sales persons or finders and the Company or its management so that an investor could understand possible conflicts of interest. You will even need to disclose relationships without formal written agreements if they are material. Because the idea of "materiality" is sometimes subjective, you should

consider most relationships that the Company has with its sales persons material and disclose them.

The sales person may be related to an officer, director or controlling stockholder of the Company by blood or marriage. If so, you should disclose the identity of the related person and nature of the relationship.

PURCHASER LIMITATIONS

72.	(a)	Is the offering limited to certain purchasers? [] Yes [] N	lo
72.	(b)	Is the offering subject to any other purchaser limitations? [] Yes	[] No
72.	(c)	If the answer to either 72(a) or 72(b) is yes, describe the limitation.	

Typical limitations are based on sales only to employees, independent contractors, or franchisees of the Company; property owners in a certain area; residents of a single state; members of a social organization; or investors meeting specified financial suitability standards or number.

Describe what steps the Company will take to ensure that the purchasers will meet the offering limitations.

IMPOUND OF OFFERING PROCEEDS

73. (a	Will the Company impound the proceeds of the offering until it raises the				
minimun	n offering proceeds? [] Yes [] No				
73. (b	If yes, what is the minimum amount of proceeds that the Company must raise and				
place in a	an impound account before the Company can receive and use the proceeds?				
\$					
73. (c	If the answer to Item 73(a) is "yes," state the date on which the offering will end				
if the Company has not raised the minimum offering proceeds.					
	date				

An impound account is an account at a financial institution where proceeds of the offering will be held, generally until the minimum amount of proceeds is raised.

The primary purpose of placing funds raised in a securities offering into an impound account is to protect investors in the event that the Company's offering objectives are not met. If the proposed business of the Company requires a minimum amount of proceeds to commence or proceed with the business in the manner proposed, most states require that an impound account be established with a bank or other similar depository institution acting as independent impound agent. Refer to the discussion under Item 30, in the Use Of Proceeds section, on setting the minimum amount. The Company and its sales persons will deposit all proceeds received from investors into the impound account until the minimum amount of proceeds has been raised. Before spending significant time and expense, you should determine whether the securities regulators will accept the intended impound holder and the proposed terms and conditions of the impound agreement.

If a securities regulator requires that an impound agent be used to hold the offering proceeds, the agent generally must obtain the permission of the securities regulator before it can release the funds. Generally, these agreements provide for release of the funds when the minimum amount has been raised.

RELEASE OF IMPOUND CONTINGENT ON ANOTHER EVENT. In some circumstances, the Company may want to have the release of impound contingent on occurrence of some other event in addition to raising the minimum offering amount. Often, the other event will be the receipt of funds from another source. The Company might need both the minimum offering amount and the funds from the outside source to complete its objectives. You might want to keep the funds in an impound account until a government agency provides the Company with an approval or the Company acquires a license necessary for the Company to begin operations or to engage in a particular activity.

RELEASE OF PROCEEDS. If the Company does not raise the minimum proceeds during the offering period, investors that purchased securities will be entitled to a return of their investment. State the date on which the proceeds will be returned to investors if the Company has not raised the minimum offering amount.

74.	(a)	Does the Company reserve the right to extend the impound period?	
		[] Yes	[] No

74. (b) If yes, describe the circumstances under which the Company might extend the impound period.

Summarize any provisions in the impound agreement that allow the Company to extend the offering period. If no provision exists in the agreement that allows the Company to

extend the period, you will need to apply to the securities regulators to request an extension. In that event, the Company will need to offer to rescind any sales made during the initial offering period.

75.	State the name, address, and telephone number of the bank or other similar depository				
institut	institution acting as impound agent.				
76.	If the offering proceeds are returned to investors at the end of the impound period, will				
the Company pay any interest earned during the impound period to investors?					

SCOR Manual Revised: September 28, 1999

75

[] Yes

[] No

MANAGEMENT

OFFICERS AND KEY PERSONS OF THE COMPANY

77. Provide the following information for each Officer and key person. The term "key person" means a person, other than the chief executive officer, chief operating officer, and chief financial officer, who makes a significant contribution to the business of the Company. Identify who performs the functions of Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, and Chief Financial Officer.

Use the format in Item 77(a) to provide background information on the Company's chief executive officer, chief operating officer, chief financial officer, and other key employees. Repeat the format as often as necessary, using (a), (b), (c), etc. to label each person. Identify positions by title.

77.	(a)	Name:	Age:
	Title:		
	Office S	Street Address:	
	Telepho	one Number:	
indicat		of employers, titles, and dates of positions by responsibilities.	held during past five years, with an
	Educati	on (degrees, schools, and dates):	
	Also a l	Director of the Company [] Yes	[] No
	Indicate	e amount of time to be spent on Company n	natters if less than full time:

OFFICERS AND KEY PERSONS OF THE COMPANY. Identify all executive officers and the positions they hold in the Company. Also identify key persons who are not executive officers and their significance to the Company. Describe the responsibilities of all officers and key persons in enough detail to show whether their experience and abilities are relevant to their designated management positions.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND KEY PERSONS DEFINED. When completing this Item, use the following definitions:

The "chief executive officer" has the overall authority to run the Company. In the small business context, the chief executive officer usually is the Company's president or general manager and is often the owner or principal stockholder.

The "chief operating officer," generally is entrusted with supervising the day-to-day business of a Company. Depending on the Company's size and structure, the chief executive officer may also be the chief operating officer.

The "chief financial officer" is usually the Company's "treasurer," the person who has custody of the Company's funds and financial records.

The term "key person" means a person, other than your chief executive officer, chief operating officer, and chief financial officer, who makes a significant contribution to the business of the Company. Examples of key persons are vice presidents, production managers, sales managers, and research scientists. A key person may be an employee, independent contractor, or consultant.

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY. For each executive officer and key person, describe all employment for the past five years, including each position held and the type of business involved. Include a complete five-year history of all prior occupations. Do not omit past ventures, successful or not. Securities laws require full disclosure of all material information. In addition, potential investors will notice gaps in employment history and may assume that the Company intentionally omitted information.

<u>Note</u>: When you respond to this Item, review Items 87 and 88. If Item 87 or 88 contains a detailed discussion of someone's employment history from the last five years, you do not need to provide a lot of information in this Item. Name the employer and the position held and refer the reader to Item 87 or 88, as appropriate, for more information.

EDUCATION. Briefly describe the education of executive officers and key persons. Do not include information about honorary degrees or training certificates unless it is relevant to the Company's business. Similarly, do not disclose outside affiliations with fraternal,

charitable, or community organizations unless they are relevant to the Company's business.

DIRECTORS. Indicate which officers also serve as directors of the Company. State whether they have been elected for a specific term and whether they are serving under any special circumstances or arrangements.

Part-time officers and key persons. Indicate whether the Company's executive officers and key persons work less than full time. Disclose the approximate amount of time each part-time officer and key person devotes to Company matters. In addition, if an officer spends less than full time on Company matters, disclose why. Does the Company lack resources to pay his or her salary? Is the officer involved in other enterprises that demand his or her time? Is the officer engaged in another activity that is a conflict of interest?

If the reason that an executive officer or key person is part-time could have a negative impact on Company operations, disclose that information in detail in this section and summarize it in Item 1, Risk Factors.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

78.	(a)	Number of Directors:				
78.	(b)	Are Directors elected annually? [] Yes [] No If no, explain.				
If directors are not elected annually, disclose how and when they are elected.						
78.	(c)	Are Directors elected under a voting trust or other arrangement?				
[] Yes	1	[] No If yes, explain.				

If there is a voting trust, stockholder agreement, or other agreement relating to the election of directors, describe all material provisions of the agreement.

Include in the description:

- · the class of the securities held;
- · the amount of securities held;
- the duration of the agreement;
- · the names and addresses of the voting trustees; and
- the voting rights and other powers of the voting trustees.

If a voting trust, or similar arrangement, controls 10% or more of the Company's shares, disclose its impact on the ability of new investors to elect directors and exercise control over the Company. Also, you may need to summarize this information in Item 1, Risk Factors.

79. Provide the following information for each Director not described in Item 77:

Use the format in Item 79(a) to provide background information on each such Director. Repeat the format as often as necessary, using (a), (b), (c), etc. to label each person.

79.	(a)	Name:	Age:
	Office	Street Address:	
	Teleph	one Number:	
indicat		of employers, titles, and dates of positions held during past to b responsibilities.	five years, with an
	Educat	tion (degrees, schools, and dates):	

Identify all directors not described in Item 77, their term of office, and the period of time that they have already served. Describe their business experience for the past five years and identify other directorships they hold, naming each company and any affiliation with the Company. If a director holds a special title or serves in a special capacity, such as a member of a committee of the board of directors to review employee compensation or internal controls of the Company, briefly describe his or her responsibilities. Describe the background and responsibilities in enough detail to allow potential investors to determine whether their experience and abilities are relevant to their directorship.

CONSULTANTS

80.	(a)	Are all key persons employees of the Company?	[] Yes	[] No	
80.	(b)	If no, state the details of each contract or engagement	ent.		

This Item requires you to disclose the terms of contracts or agreements for the services of key persons who are not employees of the Company. Disclose why these persons are not employees and describe the terms of the consulting agreement. Explain whether the terms of the consulting agreement reflect standard industry practice and whether the agreement favors one party over the other. Does the agreement permit a consultant to also work for a competitor of the Company or to go into the business of the Company on his or her own? Also disclose any past relationships between the consultant and any officers, directors, or key employees of the Company.

If any aspect of the arrangement with a consultant may negatively impact the Company, provide appropriate risk disclosure and add to Item 1, Risk Factors.

ARRANGEMENTS WITH OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, AND KEY PERSONS

81. Describe any arrangements to ensure that Officers, Directors, and key persons will remain with the Company and not compete with the Company if they leave.

Disclose the Company's arrangements to ensure the continued availability of officers, directors, and key persons through long-term contracts, non-compete agreements, or other arrangements. Also disclose the lack of such an arrangement with an officer, director, or key person.

REQUIRED DISCLOSURES. Describe the terms and conditions of any of the following contracts, plans, or arrangements:

- Any employment contract between the Company and an officer, director, or key person;
- Any compensatory arrangement activated by the resignation, retirement, or other termination of an officer, director, or key person; and
- Any compensatory arrangement activated by a change in the person's responsibilities after a change in control of the Company.

Disclose the amount involved, including all periodic payments or installments.

DISCLOSURE OF AGREEMENTS NOT TO COMPETE. Disclose the terms of any agreements of the Company's officers, directors, and key persons not to compete with the Company if they leave the Company. Describe the steps the Company might take to enforce each agreement.

82. (a) Describe the impact on the Company if it loses the services of any Officer, Director, or key person due to death or disability.

The loss of an officer, director, or key person represents a significant risk to the on-going operations of the Company. This is particularly true if a few people manage the Company. Discuss the potential impact of such a loss on the business of the Company and the risk this poses to investors. Also disclose any relevant factors, such as age or health of an officer, director, or key person, which may increase the risk that his or her services will become unavailable. Consider whether to include additional disclosure in Item 1, Risk Factors.

- 82. (b) Has the Company purchased key person life insurance on any Officer, Director, or key person? [] Yes [] No
- 82. (c) Has the Company made any arrangements to replace any Officer, Director, or key person it loses due to death or disability? [] Yes [] No
- 82. (d) If the answer to either Item 82(b) or 82(c) is "yes," describe.

Disclose whether the Company has established any procedures to deal with the loss of its officers, directors, and key persons. These procedures might include searching for a replacement for the key person or winding up the Company.

Insurance of Personnel. Disclose whether the Company has purchased "key person" life insurance on any of its personnel, payable to the Company upon the death of the person. Describe the terms and coverage of each insurance policy, including:

- the name of the person insured,
- the amount of the policy,
- to whom the proceeds are payable, and
- any arrangements that require the proceeds to be used to redeem securities or pay benefits to the estate of the insured person or to a surviving spouse.

Disclose how the Company intends to use the proceeds payable to it.

If the Company has not purchased "key person" life insurance, or if the Company will not benefit from the insurance, include the appropriate disclosures in Item 1, Risk Factors.

COMPENSATION

83. List all compensation that the Company paid to its Officers, Directors, and key persons for the last fiscal year:				
	<u>Cash</u>	<u>Other</u>		
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer Key Persons:	\$	\$		
Total:	\$	\$		
Officers as a group				
(number of persons)	\$	\$		
Directors as a group (number of persons)	\$	\$		
Key Persons as a group				
(number of persons)	\$	\$		

Disclose the salaries and other benefits, such as life insurance, paid to the Company's officers, directors, and key persons during the last fiscal year. Disclose the total compensation paid to the chief executive officer, chief operating officer, chief financial officer, and each key person. Also disclose the total compensation paid to any other officer, director, or employee whose total compensation was more than that paid to a manager or key person.

List each person by title.

COMPENSATION. Include anything provided by the Company that directly or indirectly benefits an officer, director, or employee. Compensation includes both cash and non-cash items.

"Cash" includes:

- salary,
- bonus,
- consulting fees,
- non-accountable expense accounts, and
- · other similar items.

"Other" includes:

- the value of any options granted or securities given,
- · any annuity, pension, or retirement benefits,
- bonus or profit-sharing plans, and
- personal benefits, including club memberships, company cars, insurance benefits not generally available to employees, etc.

Itemize these benefits in a footnote to the column.

If you paid compensation in some form other than cash, and it is impractical to determine the cash value, state the nature and amount of the compensation in a note to the table. An example of non-cash compensation that may be difficult to value is the use of a company car.

COMPENSATION UNDER AN ONGOING PLAN. Briefly describe all proposed future compensation the Company will pay pursuant to ongoing plans or arrangements with the individuals and groups specified. Include in the description:

- a summary of how each plan operates,
- any performance formula or measure or other criteria used to determine payment amounts,
- the time periods used to determine the measurements of benefits,
- payment schedules, and
- any recent material amendments to the plan.

Include disclosure about life, health, or hospitalization insurance or medical reimbursement plans that discriminate in scope, terms, or operation in favor of officers or directors. Include the cost of key person life insurance if the proceeds are not payable to the Company.

Do not furnish Information about group life, health, or hospitalization insurance or medical reimbursement plans generally available to all salaried employees. Disclose this information in Item 18.

State the number of persons in each group and their total compensation.

84. (a) Has compensation been unpaid in prior years? [] Yes [] No						
84. (b) Does the Company owe any Officer, Director, or employee any compensation						
for prior years? [] Yes [] No						
84. (c) Explain any "yes" answer to Item 84(a) or 84(b).						
Do not respond to this Item if you answered "no" to Items 84(a) and 84(b)						
85. Is compensation expected to change within the next year? [] Yes [] No						
If yes, explain.						
86. (a) Does the Company have any employment agreements with Officers, Directors, or key persons? [] Yes [] No If yes, describe.						
86. (b) Does the Company plan to enter into any employment agreements with Officers, Directors, or key persons? [] Yes [] No If yes, describe.						

- the title and name of the officer, director, or employee;
- the date of the agreement and its beginning and end dates;
- · the compensation and/or benefits the Company agreed to provide; and
- terms for terminating the agreement.

If the Company has contractual agreements with its officers or employees to pay salaries, disclose how the Company plans to make these payments, including using the proceeds from the offering. Make sure your response to this Item agrees with Item 30, Use of Proceeds.

PRIOR EXPERIENCE

87.	Has any Officer or	Director worked for or managed a company (including a separate
subsidi	ary or division of a la	rger enterprise) in the same type of business as the Company?
[] Yes	[] No	If yes, explain in detail, including relevant dates.

You must disclose information about all past business ventures in the same business, particularly if they were unsuccessful.

Disclose in detail each officer's and each director's prior experience with the same type of business as the Company. For each business or venture, disclose:

- the officer or director:
- the company,
- the position held,
- · his or her areas of responsibility,
- any significant contributions to the company,
- whether the company is still operating,
- if the company is no longer operating, why not,
- · why the prior experience is relevant and how it will enhance the management of the Company, and
- any on-going relationship with the business or venture partners.

Include in Item 77 or 79, as appropriate, any business venture disclosed in this Item.

If the officers and directors lack experience with the same type of business, briefly state that and identify the potential risk this may pose to investors. Consider whether you should add a similar statement to Item 1. Risk Factors.

88.	(a)	If the Company has never conducted operations or is otherwise in the							
	development stage, has any Officer or Director managed another company in the start-up								
	or development stage? [] Yes [] No								
88.	(b)	If yes, explain in detail	l, including relevant	dates.					

Answer this Item only if the Company is in the start-up or development stage.

Disclose all information about past start-up or development stage business ventures, even if they were unsuccessful. If a prior start-up venture failed, explain why and whether the Company has formulated a plan to avoid a similar failure.

Disclose each officer's and each director's prior experience dealing with the problems and risks associated with a start-up venture. For each business or venture, disclose:

- the officer or director;
- the company,
- the position held,
- · his or her areas of responsibility,
- any significant contributions to the company,
- · a general description of the type of business engaged in,
- · whether the company is still operating, and
- if the company is not still operating, why not.

You may also describe problems common to development-stage companies that were encountered in the venture, how those problems were handled, and how the experience gained is relevant to the Company.

If the Company is in the start-up or development stage and its officers and directors lack relevant experience with start-up ventures, provide a brief statement to that effect and identify the potential risk this may pose to investors. Add a similar statement to Item 1, Risk Factors.

CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In responding to Items 89-95, see the discussion under Item 77 for definitions of some of the terms used in these Items.

Insolvency

89. Has a petition for bankruptcy, receivership, or a similar insolvency proceeding been filed							
by or against any Officer, Director, or key person within the past five years, or any longer period							
if material? [] Yes [] No							
90. Was any Officer, Director, or key person an executive officer, a director, or in a similar							
management position for any business entity that was the subject of a petition for bankruptcy,							
receivership, or similar insolvency proceeding within the past five years, or any longer period if							
material? [] Yes [] No							

A "similar insolvency proceeding" includes the court appointment of a custodian, trustee, fiscal agent, similar officer for the business or property of any of the Company's officers, directors, or key persons of a business entity related to any of them.

91. Explain in detail any "yes" answers to Item 89 or 90.

Do not respond to this Item if you answered "no" to Items 89 and 90.

Personal Insolvency proceedings. Disclose all relevant issues about each personal bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding. Include:

- the name of the officer, director, or key person,
- the date of the initial proceeding,
- the name of the court that heard the proceeding,
- the docket number of the case,
- · the current status of the case, and
- the current financial condition of the officer, director, or key person (i.e. is he or she insolvent?).

Also disclose whether any officer, director, or key person has substantial outstanding debts (including debts that were accelerated due to default).

Insolvency proceedings for other ventures. Disclose all relevant issues about each proceeding. Include:

- the name of the officer or director;
- · the company,
- the position held,
- · his or her areas of responsibility,
- the date of the initial proceeding,
- the name of the court that heard the proceeding,
- the docket number of the case,
- the current status of the case, and
- any similarity between the business venture and the Company.

If any of the Company's officers or directors owned or managed a business in the same industry as the Company and that business has been the subject of a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding, explain the prior business failure in Item 87. Also explain how the Company intends to avoid a similar failure. Make these disclosures whether or not the entity involved in the bankruptcy or insolvency is technically a predecessor of the present Company. Review your answers to Items 24-27 to determine whether you have adequately disclosed the relationship between the failed entity and the Company.

Give an evaluation by management or legal counsel, to the extent feasible, of the merits of any current proceedings and the potential impact on the Company's business, financial condition, or operations. Identify any potential risk to investors or the Company's operations that may result from the bankruptcy or insolvency of the officers, directors, or key employees. Consider whether to add a similar statement to Item 1, Risk Factors.

Criminal Proceedings

92. (a)	Has any Officer, Director, or key person been convicted in a criminal proceeding,							
excluding	excluding traffic violations or other minor offenses?							
[] Yes	[] No							
92. (b)	Is any Officer, Director, or key person named as the subject of a pending criminal							
proceeding	s, excluding traffic violations or other minor offenses? [] Yes [] No							
92. (c)	Explain in detail any "yes" answer to Item 92(a) or 92(b).							

Do not respond to this Item if you answered "no" to Items 92(a), and 92(b).

Disclose all relevant issues about each criminal proceeding. Include:

the name of the officer, director, or key person,

- the crime or alleged crime,
- the prosecuting agency,
- · the date of the initial proceeding,
- the name of the court,
- the docket number of the case,
- the current status of the case, and
- the penalty imposed or sought.

Give an evaluation by management or legal counsel, to the extent feasible, of the merits of any pending criminal proceedings and the potential impact on the Company's business, financial condition, or operations.

Identify any potential risk to investors or the Company's operations that may result from these proceedings. Consider whether to add a similar statement to Item 1, Risk Factors.

Civil Proceedings

93. (a) Has any Officer, Director, or key person been the subject of a court order, judgment, or decree in the last five years related to his or her involvement in any type of business, securities, or banking activity?							
[] Yes	[] No						
93. (b) to his or her in	Is any Officer, Director, or key person the subject of a pending civil action related evolvement in any type of business, securities, or banking activity?						
[] Yes	[] No						
93. (c) related to his o	Has any civil action been threatened against any Officer, Director, or key person or her involvement in any type of business, securities, or banking activity?						
[] Yes	[] No						

93. (d) Explain in detail any "yes" answer to Item 93(a), 93(b), or 93(c).

Do not respond to this Item if you answered "no" to Items 93(a), 93(b), and 93(c).

Disclose all relevant issues about each civil action. Include:

- the name of the officer, director, or key person,
- the person bringing the action,
- a summary of the allegations,

- the date of the initial proceeding,
- · the name of the court.
- the docket number of the case,
- the current status of the case, and
- · the relief granted or sought.

Give an evaluation by management or legal counsel, to the extent feasible, of the merits of any pending civil litigation and the potential impact on the Company's business, financial condition, or operations of any pending or threatened civil actions.

Identify any potential risk to investors or the Company's operations that may result from these proceedings. Consider whether you should add a similar statement to Item, 1 Risk Factors.

Administrative Proceedings

imposed an adm	Has any government agency, administrative agency, or administrative court ninistrative finding, order, decree, or sanction against any Officer, Director, or ne last five years as a result of his or her involvement in any type of business, nking activity?
[] Yes [] No
` '	s any Officer, Director, or key person the subject of a pending administrative red to his or her involvement in any type of business, securities, or banking [] Yes [] No
` '	Has any administrative proceeding been threatened against any Officer, Director, lated to his or her involvement in any type of business, securities, or banking [] Yes [] No
94. (d) E	Explain in detail any "yes" answer to Item 94(a), 94(b), or 94(c).

Do not respond to this Item if you answered "no" to Items 94(a), 94(b), and 94(c).

Disclose all relevant issues about each administrative action. Include:

• the name of the officer, director, or key person,

- · the agency bringing the action,
- · a summary of the allegations,
- the date of the initial proceeding,
- · the name of any hearing officer or administrative court,
- the docket number of the case,
- the current status of the case, and
- the relief imposed or sought.

Give an evaluation by management or legal counsel, to the extent feasible, of the merits of any pending administrative proceedings and the potential impact on the Company's business, financial condition, or operations of any pending or threatened administrative actions.

Identify any potential risk to investors or the Company's operations that may result from these proceedings. Consider whether you should add a similar statement to Item 1, Risk Factors.

Self-Regulatory Proceedings

key person in	the last five years as a result	-	ction against any Officer, Director, or involvement in any type of business, [] No
3 /	roceeding related to his or her	• •	abject of a pending self-regulatory any type of business, securities, or
Officer, Direct	or, or key person related to his	-	ding been threatened against any ement in any type of business, [] No
95. (d)	Explain in detail any "yes" an	swer to Item 9	5(a), 95(b), or 95(c).

Do not respond to this Item if you answered "no" to Items 95(a), 95(b), and 95(c).

Disclose all relevant issues about each self-regulatory action. Include:

the name of the officer, director, or key person,

- the self-regulatory agency bringing the action,
- · a summary of the allegations,
- the date of the initial proceeding,
- the name of any hearing officer or administrative court,
- the docket number of the case,
- the current status of the case, and
- the relief imposed or sought.

Give an evaluation by management or legal counsel, to the extent feasible, of the merits of any pending self-regulatory proceedings and the potential impact on the Company's business, financial condition, or operations of any pending or threatened self-regulatory actions.

Identify any potential risk to investors or the Company's operations that may result from these proceedings. Consider whether you should add a similar statement to Item 1, Risk Factors.

NOTE: After reviewing the background of the Company's Officers, Directors and key persons, potential investors should consider whether or not these persons have adequate background and experience to develop and operate this Company and to make it successful. In this regard, the experience and ability of management are often considered the most significant factors in the success of a business.

OUTSTANDING SECURITIES

GENERAL

96. Describe all outstanding securities.

You should describe briefly each outstanding class of equity security, including any preferred stock. If the Company has issued any debt securities, also provide a brief description of each class issued. If the only classes of securities currently outstanding are already described in your answer to Items 49 - 64, simply provide a cross reference to those answers.

97. Describe any resale restrictions on currently outstanding securities and when those restrictions will terminate, if this can be determined.

RESALE RESTRICTIONS ON OUTSTANDING SHARES. Disclose all resale restrictions on currently outstanding shares and the anticipated termination of these restrictions.

Disclose any effect the potential sale of formerly restricted securities will have on the price of the securities purchased by investors in this offering.

RESALE RESTRICTIONS FOR SHARES SOLD UNDER EXEMPTIONS. If the shares outstanding were not sold in a registered offering, they may have been sold pursuant to a federal or state exemption from registration that required the shares to be restricted. Outstanding shares of the Company that are restricted may be subject to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 144. Outstanding shares may also be restricted if they were sold solely within one state under Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 147. You should disclose the amount of shares held and the expected periods of time persons subject to these rules are required to hold their shares.

RESTRICTIONS UNDER PROMOTIONAL STOCK ESCROW. You also must disclose all restrictions on transfer of promoters' shares. A promoter is defined as a person who is a founder of the Company or owner of 10% or more of the stock of the Company. The stock held by a promoter is called promotional stock, which securities regulators may require to be placed in an escrow with a financial institution, and a restriction called a legend may also be required on the stock certificates. If a promotional escrow or legend is required, disclose the terms of the promotional stock escrow and legend and identify the amount of shares affected and the amount held by each affected stockholder.

98. Describe any anti-dilution rights on outstanding securities.

ANTI-DILUTION RIGHTS. Disclose any rights or provisions that protect existing stockholders from dilution of their interest in the securities of the Company. Give the details of any anti-dilution formulas, including such provisions regarding preferred shares, convertible debt or in other agreements dealing with securities of the Company. Disclose the effect of the exercise of these rights on the ownership interest of investors in this offering.

DIVIDENDS, DISTRIBUTIONS, AND REDEMPTIONS

99. (a)		oany paid any dividends on its stock	k, made any dis	tributions of its			
stock, or rede	emed any secui	rities within the last five years?	[] Yes	[] No			
If yes, describ	e each transact	ion.					
-							
99. (b)	Does the Com	npany have any plans or commitme	nts to pay divid	lends on its stock,			
make distributions of its stock, or redeem its outstanding securities in the future?							
[] Yes	[] No	If yes, explain.					

You should describe the dividend policy of the Company, and emphasize that the past payment of dividends or distributions of its stock should not be viewed either as an indication of the success of the Company or that the Company will pay dividends or make any distributions in the future.

You should disclose if the dividends have been paid from the Company's capital or from gains from nonrecurring sales of assets, rather than from earnings from operations.

OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

100.	(a)	State the nu	mber of share	es subje	ect to is	suan	ce unde	r ou	tstan	ding s	stock pu	irch	ase
agreements, stock options, warrants or rights. shares													
100.	(b)	The shares	identified in	Item	100(a)	are	%	of	the	total	shares	to	be
	()	fter the minim											
100.	(c)	The shares	identified in	Item	100(a)	are	%	of	the	total	shares	to	be
outsta	nding at	fter the maxin	num offering.		,								

101. In a table, describe these stock purchase agreements, stock options, warrants, and rights. State the basic terms of these securities, including the expiration dates, the exercise prices, who holds them, whether they are qualified or non qualified for tax purposes, and whether they have been approved by stockholders.

You should review the tax laws to determine the tax considerations of these of securities.

103.	Does the Company h	ave any plans or commitments to issue or offer options in the						
future'	future?							
[] Yes	s [] No	If yes, explain.						

SALES OF SECURITIES

104. (a)	Has the Company sold or issued securities during the last 12 months?
[] Yes	[] No

104. (b) If yes, using a tabular format, provide the following information for each transaction: the date of the transaction; the amount and type of securities sold or issued; the number of purchasers to whom the securities were sold or issued; any relationship of the purchasers to the Company at the time of sale or issuance; the price at which the securities were sold or issued; and a concise description of any non-cash consideration.

ISSUANCE OR SALE. Disclose the issuance of all "securities", not just common stock. This may require changing the headings on the tabular disclosure. If the number of persons to whom securities were issued was less than 10, their names should be listed. You must also disclose the price, if any, at which the securities were issued and the date of sale.

TABULAR DISCLOSURE. Tabular disclosure is recommended with a narrative explanation preceding or following the table. The following is an example of tabular disclosure:

<u>Date</u>	Number of Shares	<u>Stockholders</u>	<u>Relationship</u>	<u>Price</u>	<u>Consideration</u>
6/5/99	1,500	Blair	Employee	\$ 1.00	Services
12/1/98	69,500*	Walter	Director	\$.18	Services
3/1/99	40,000**	Michaels	Employee	\$ 1.08	Cash
3/1/99	32,250	Brady	Advisor	\$.20	Services
8/1/99	14,297***	Debenture Conversion		\$ 1.00	Accrued Interest

^{*} Options-Mr. Walter received no cash compensation during his first two years.

OPTIONS ON SHARES. If options, warrants or other rights have been issued in the last year, the number of shares that could be issued upon exercise must be disclosed, together with a footnote that describes the material terms of any options, warrants or rights, including the exercise price.

STOCK SPLITS. Stock splits do not change a stockholder's percentage of ownership in the Company. The number of shares and prices disclosed should be restated to reflect any stock splits. Items 25 - 26 should discuss the stock split.

Note: If the Company has not issued or sold any securities in the last 12-month period, you should make that disclosure.

^{**} Mr. Michaels purchased 20,000 shares on 3/1/99. Mr. Michaels has the option to purchase an additional 20,000 shares up to 12/31/99.

^{***} The issuance of 14,297 shares pursuant to the conversion of outstanding debentures (as disclosed in Note 9, p. 12 of the Audited Financial Statements).

PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

105. In the following table, provide the name and office street address of each person who beneficially owns at least 10% of the common or preferred stock of the Company.							
				P		r	
			Average			No. of Shares	
			Price	No. of		Held After	
			Per	Shares	% of	Offering if	
% of							
, , , ,		Class of Shares	Share	Now Held	<u>Total</u>	All Securities Sold	
<u> Fotal</u>							
106. Number of shares beneficially owned by all Officers and Directors as a group:							
106.	(a)	Before offering:		share	s (_	% of total outstanding)	
100.	(u)	Deloie offering.		Silai C			
106.	(b)	After offering: A	ssuming	minimum sec	curities so	old: shares	
	,		C	(of total outstanding)	
106.	(c)	After offering: A	ssuming	maximum see	curities s	old: shares	
				(%	of total outstanding)	

PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS. You should disclose the ownership interest of principal stockholders, officers and directors of the Company. List the principal stockholders (any stockholder whose ownership interest represents 10% or more of the total stock outstanding) in order of their percentage of interest. Shares held by family members, through corporations or partnerships, or through any other arrangement or agreement that would allow a stockholder, officer, or director to direct or control the voting of the shares are considered to be "beneficially owned" by the person who controls them. Those shares should be included when calculating the percentage of ownership interest.

The remainder of the required information should be calculated as follows:

"Average Price per Share": means the average price paid for securities currently owned by each principal stockholder, or in the case of options, warrants or convertible securities, their exercise price. Additional disclosure should be provided in a footnote to the table if the securities were obtained in a non-cash transaction. Describe the type of non-cash consideration given in exchange for receiving shares, and how the value of the consideration was determined.

"Number of Shares Now Held" means the number of shares of common stock (or options, warrants, or convertible securities, if more than one class of securities is owned) beneficially owned prior to the offering.

"% of Total" means the percentage of that class of securities outstanding prior to the offering or, as used in the last column, the percentage of the total of that class of securities outstanding after giving effect to the sale of all securities being offered in this offering. The total amount of securities outstanding is calculated assuming all options have been exercised and all convertible securities have been converted.

Note: This Item asks the Company to disclose the number of shares beneficially owned by all officers and directors as a group. The required information (including the figures representing the total shares outstanding) should be calculated assuming the exercise of all options and the conversion of all convertible securities. Tabular disclosure is recommended with a narrative explanation preceding or following the table. The following is an example of tabular disclosure:

<u>Sample Calculation:</u> Beneficial Ownership of Officers and Directors (assumes 647,020 shares outstanding prior to the offering; minimum offering of 40,000 shares; and maximum offering of 216,000 shares)

	<u>Name</u>	<u>Shares</u>	<u>Options</u>	<u>Total</u>	
	CEO	244,312	45,000	289,312	
	CFO Director Total	214,582 	12,000 <u>19,000</u> 76,000	226,582 <u>20,000</u> 535,894	
% C	ownership Pre-Offer Ownership Post-Offe Ownership Post-Offe	ring Minimum	535,894/647,020 535,894/687,020 535,894/863,020	= = =	82.8% 78.0% 62.1%

NOTE: These calculations assume that all outstanding options have been exercised and all convertible securities have been converted.

MANAGEMENT RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS 107. Is there a family relationship between any Officer, Director, key person, or principal stockholder? [] Yes [] No If yes, describe.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS. Describe the nature of any family relationship between any director, executive officer, key person, 10% stockholder, or any person nominated or chosen by the Company to become one of the foregoing.

The term "family relationship" means any relationship by blood, marriage, or adoption, but not extending beyond a first cousin.

MANAGEMENT TRANSACTIONS

108. (a) Officer, Direc	Will the Company use any offering proceeds to acquire assets from any tor, key person, or principal stockholder?
[] Yes	[] No
108. (b) associate of ar	Will the Company use any offering proceeds to acquire assets from an any Officer, Director, key person, or principal stockholder?
[] Yes	[] No

108. (c) If the answer to Item 108(a) or (b) is "yes," provide detailed information about each transaction. Include the name of the person, the cost to the Company, the method used to determine the cost, and any profit to the seller.

The Company must disclose acquisitions to be made with offering proceeds.

Acquisition of assets. You should respond fully to this Item. Even if a particular acquisition of assets is already discussed in Item 30, Use of Proceeds, you should emphasize the particular acquisition of assets, in this Item. The acquisition of assets usually will be purchases by the Company. However, a long term lease might also be considered to be an acquisition of assets. If so, you should describe it as if it were a

purchase. The Company must set out the cost and material terms of the acquisition transaction.

PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS. As set forth in Item 105 a person is a "principal stockholder" if the person beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 10% or more of the common or preferred stock (or equity interests) presently outstanding. If the shares are held by family members, through corporations or partnerships or otherwise in a manner that would allow a person to direct or control the voting of shares, the Company must include these shares as beneficially owned.

ASSOCIATE. An associate includes a person who is an officer, director, a partner, or is a direct or indirect beneficial owner of 5% or more of any class of equity security of an affiliate; a trust or estate in which an affiliate has a substantial beneficial interest or for which an affiliate serves as a trustee or in a similar capacity; or an affiliate's spouse and an affiliate's relative by blood or marriage.

VALUATION. If the Company is purchasing an asset from an associate, you should disclose the name of the person, the cost to the Company, and the method of determining the cost. One method of determining cost is the fair market value as established by a market for the particular asset. The cost to the seller might form the basis for the cost to the Company. Generally you should disclose the lower of the seller's cost or market value. You also might disclose the asset's chain-of-title back to an independent third party so as to demonstrate a starting point for fair market value or original cost.

If the Company has obtained or will obtain an appraisal of the value of the asset to be acquired, disclose the value. If the Company has not obtained an appraisal, disclose that fact.

DISCLOSURE OF PROFIT. The Item requires the Company to disclose any profit to an officer, director, employee, principal stockholder, or an associate. Based upon their relationship with the Company, these persons should be required to disclose their profit. The seller acquired the property for a certain amount and sold it for a certain amount so that the profit may be estimated in that manner. The seller of the asset must report profits earned for income tax purposes, usually calculated as the sale price minus the cost basis in the asset. If the seller cannot determine what his or her basis is, the Company should assume that the seller's tax basis is zero and insist that the entire amount received be disclosed as profit.

RISK FACTORS. At a minimum, the Company must disclose that any transaction with an officer or director or other affiliated person was not engaged in as an arms-length transaction. Additionally, if the method of determining the value is not based on the lower of fair market value or the cost to the seller a special disclosure covering this must be made. If the Company has not obtained an appraisal of the particular asset being acquired, an appropriate risk factor also might be needed.

109. (a) Will the Company use any offering proceeds to reimburse any Officer, Director, key person, or principal stockholder for services already rendered, assets previously transferred,
or moneys loaned or advanced, or otherwise? [] Yes [] No
109. (b) If yes, provide detailed information about each transaction. Include the name of the person, the cost to the Company, the method used to determine the cost, and any profit to the person.
REIMBURSEMENT. You should disclose if any amount of the proceeds is to be used to reimburse an officer, director, employee or stockholder for past services, assets transferred, moneys loaned and any other such transactions. Reimbursement covers actual out of pocket payments. A typical example of reimbursement arises upon the formation of the Company. A person may advance funds for legal services for the formation of the Company and may also advance funds for the initial accounting in preparation for the securities offering.
You should discuss the particular transaction and the benefit to the Company; evaluate the services rendered or assets transferred to the Company; and finally, the value to be reimbursed. Additionally, disclose whether the person is making any profit on the particular transaction. Generally, a person may not seek reimbursement for activities that have not benefited the Company, such as for his or her own purchase of Company stock.
110. (a) Has the Company made loans to any Officer, Director, key person, or principal stockholder within the last two years? [] Yes [] No
110. (b) Does the Company plan to make loans to its Officers, Directors, key persons, or principal stockholders in the future?
[] Yes [] No
If yes, describe any policies the Company has adopted to deal with the conflicts of interest in these transactions:
DISCLOSURE OF LOANS. You should disclose in the Disclosure Document if the

Company is permitted to make loans to its officers, directors, key persons or principal stockholders in the future, excluding advances made in the normal course of business for travel, business expense and similar ordinary operating expenditures. Disclosure should include whether loans must be approved by a resolution of the Board of Directors and what role, if any, independent directors play in the approval process. Disclose any steps to be taken by the Company to determine if the loans should be

SCOR Manual Revised: September 28, 1999

made, including purpose for the loans, repayment schedules, maturity lengths, interest rates, credit reports, and promissory notes.				
111. (a) Has the Company done business with any Officer, Director, key person, or principal stockholder within the last two years? [] Yes [] No				
111. (b) Is the Company currently doing business with any Officer, Director, key person, or principal stockholder? [] Yes [] No				
111. (c) Does the Company plan to do business with its Officers, Directors, key persons, or principal stockholders in the future? [] Yes [] No				
If yes, describe any policies the Company has adopted to deal with the conflicts of interest in these transactions:				
DISCLOSURE . You should disclose if the Company is permitted to do business with its officers, directors, key persons or principal stockholders in the future. Disclosure should include whether business arrangements will be on terms comparable to those available from unaffiliated third parties. Disclose any approval process required by the Board of Directors and what role, if any, Directors not having an interest in the business arrangements play in the approval process.				
112. Explain any "yes" answers to Items 110(a), 111(a), or 111(b). State the principal terms of any significant loans, agreements, leases, financing, or other arrangements.				
Transactions with Management . Describe any material transactions involving the purchase or sale of assets by the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) other than in the ordinary course of business. You should state the cost of those assets to the purchaser and, if acquired by the seller within the previous two years of the transaction, the cost to the seller. Describe the methods used in determining the Company's purchase or sale price and the name(s) of the person(s) making that determination.				
MATERIALITY OF AN INTEREST. To determine if a transaction needs to be disclosed, consider the relationship between the parties and the amount of the transaction as well as its importance to the Company and prospective stockholders.				
113. (a) Has any Officer, Director, key person, or principal stockholder guaranteed or cosigned the Company's bank debt or other obligations? [] Yes [] No				

113. (b) If yes, explain the terms of each transaction and describe the Company's plans for repayment.

LITIGATION

- 114. Describe any recent or pending litigation or administrative action which has had or may have a material effect upon the Company's business, financial condition, or operations. State the names of the principal parties, the nature and current status of the matters, and the amounts involved.
- 115. Describe any threatened litigation or administrative action that may have a material effect upon the Company's business, financial condition, or operations. State the names of the principal parties, and the nature and current status of the matters.

INTRODUCTION. In response to Items 114 and 115 the Company or its counsel should evaluate the merits of each pending litigation proceeding, including the potential impact on the Company's business, and financial condition.

Scope of LITIGATION DISCLOSURE. You should disclose any litigation that is likely to have a material effect on the Company. Disclosure includes information not only about present pending litigation, but also includes past concluded litigation, and future unasserted claims of which the Company is aware. Disclosure is not limited to actions in which the Company is a party, but also includes separate litigation filed against the Company's directors, officers or key persons if the litigation is likely to have a material effect on the Company. The Company also should disclose any material litigation involving any subsidiary or affiliate. The Company also should include in its litigation disclosure, any outstanding judgments or liens that are a result of litigation.

MATERIALITY. If the litigation is material in its effect on the Company, you must disclose that. The Company should use its own judgment to determine if disclosure is needed. If there is any doubt about what is material, the Company should seek the assistance of an attorney or an accountant. A business may routinely generate a certain type of claim, for example, a negligence claim. The claim may not be material unless it exceeds the average for that type of claim. Claims for damages below 10% of the net assets of the Company are not usually material. A proceeding for bankruptcy, receivership or a similar proceeding is always material. Regulatory problems involving securities law violations should always be disclosed. Finally, disclose any material legal proceeding in which certain corporate insiders or affiliates of the Company are in a position that is contrary to that of the Company.

In determining the disclosure necessary in the Company's financial statements, answer the question: Should pending or threatened litigation be disclosed as a contingent liability? You should consider the following factors: the period in which the underlying cause of action occurred; if the litigation is pending, the probability of an unfavorable outcome, or if the litigation is threatened, the probability that a suit may be filed and the possibility of an unfavorable outcome; and, the ability to reasonably estimate the amount or range of potential losses.

Counsel for the Company should be asked to assess the likelihood that the company may lose. Based on the ability to reasonably estimate the amount of any contingent liability, an assessment may be required as to the material impact the resulting liability would have on the financial condition of the Company. Ordinarily, contingent liabilities associated with securities law violations must be disclosed.

CONTENT OF DISCLOSURE. To fully respond to this Item, you should include the name of the court where the proceeding is pending, a description of the facts underlying the claim and the relief sought.

TAX ASPECTS

116. Describe any material tax consequences to investors in this offering.

TAX IMPACT ON INVESTORS. You should discuss the federal income tax treatment of the Company and its impact on investors. If the Company is set up as an "S Corporation," a limited liability company, or other entity in which income is usually "passed through," you should discuss the impact on investors. Investors need to know how they will be taxed. Discuss other relevant tax treatment that may have an impact on investors.

POTENTIAL LOSS OF S CORPORATION STATUS. The primary risk involved in S corporation status is the Company's potential loss of that status. Disqualifying factors should be discussed in light of the individual circumstances of the issuer.

FEASIBILITY OF S CORPORATION STATUS FOR COMPANIES REGISTERING AN OFFERING.
Because an S Corporation may have only 75 stockholders and one class of stock, an exemption from any state registration process should be actively pursued prior to considering registration. A Company claiming S corporation status that files an application should retain a qualified tax advisor to evaluate the tax aspects and risks and obtain a written analysis or opinion. If such analysis and opinion is not obtained from an independent tax advisor, the Company should disclose this fact.

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES. Since this type of entity may provide the tax advantages of a limited partnership and the liability protection of a corporation and may issue multiple classes of stock, you should discuss any tax impact on the company and its members.

REIT's AND COOPERATIVES. Certain types of businesses organized under state law as corporations may qualify for special tax treatment. Two possible examples are the real estate investment trust and the cooperative. If a corporation qualifies as a REIT or a coop for tax purposes, there may be a substantial individual tax impact on the members, which you should disclose to potential investors.

NET OPERATING LOSSES. Some companies may have accumulated a substantial net operating loss that may be carried forward into subsequent tax years to shelter income. If the Company intends to emphasize this disclosure in the offering, specific and accurate disclosure, should be included.

OTHER MATERIAL FACTORS

117. Describe any other material factors, either adverse or favorable, that will or could affect the Company or its business or which are necessary to make any other information in this Disclosure Document not misleading or incomplete.

CATCH ALL. The Items in this Disclosure Document do not cover all industries and types of businesses. You may find it necessary to add material disclosure under this Item that is not covered elsewhere. You should understand that an investor may not be able to make an informed investment decision unless full and complete information about the Company is given when completing the Disclosure Document.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

118. (a) Describe the types of information that the Company will provide to security holders in the future.

118. (b) Describe the schedule for providing this information.

Your Disclosure Document should disclose what financial information about the company's progress will be provided after the offering of securities has been completed. You also should disclose when that information will be provided. Generally, stockholders will receive an annual report within 120 days after the end of your fiscal year. The report should contain financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and reviewed by independent certified public accountants in accordance with the accounting and review service standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. See Appendix B.

118. (c) Attach the Company's financial statements to the Disclosure Document.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. There should be total consistency between the information in the narrative responses to Disclosure Document Items and the information appearing in the Financial Statements, including the accompanying Notes. You should contact your securities regulator to discuss financial statement requirements, as certain states have financial statement requirements that differ from those discussed in this manual.

Financial Statements. Attach to the Disclosure Document for the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, a balance sheet as of the end of the most recent fiscal year. If the Company has been in existence for less than one fiscal year, attach a balance sheet as of the date within 135 days of the date of filing the registration application. If the first effective date of state registration, as set forth on the Cover Page of the Disclosure Document, is within 45 days after the Company's fiscal year end and financial statements for the most recent fiscal year are not available, the balance sheet may be as of the end of the preceding fiscal year. An additional balance sheet, at least as current as the end of the Company's most recent third fiscal quarter, should be included. Also attach, for the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, and for its predecessors, statements of income and cash flows and statements of changes in stockholders' equity for the most recent fiscal year or such shorter period as the Company (including predecessors) has been in existence. In addition, for any interim period at least as current as the end of the Company's most recent third fiscal quarter, attach statements of income and cash flows.

Financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. If the Company has not conducted significant operations, statements of receipts and disbursements shall be included in place of statements of income. Interim financial statements may be unaudited. All other financial statements shall be audited by independent certified public accountants; provided, however, that if each of the following four conditions are met, such financial statements in place of being audited may be reviewed by independent certified public accountants in accordance with the Accounting and Review Service Standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants: (a) the Company shall not have previously sold securities in an offering involving the general solicitation of prospective investors using advertising, mass mailings, public meetings, "cold call" telephone solicitation or any other method directed toward the public, (b) the Company has not been previously required under federal or state securities laws to provide audited financial statements in connection with any sale of its securities. (c) the aggregate amount of all previous sales of securities by the Company (exclusive of any debt financing with banks and similar commercial lenders) shall not exceed \$1,000,000, and (d) the amount of the present offering does not exceed \$1,000,000.

If since the beginning of its last fiscal year the Company has acquired another business, you should provide a pro forma combined balance sheet as of the end of the fiscal year, and a pro forma combined statement of income as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the Company's last fiscal year, and any of the following exists: (a) the investments in and advances to the acquired business by the Company and its subsidiaries (other than the acquired business) exceed 20% of the Company's assets on its consolidated balance sheet at the end of the Company's last fiscal year, (b) the Company's and its subsidiaries (other than the acquired business') proportionate share of the total assets (after intercompany eliminations) of the acquired business exceeds 20% of the assets on the consolidated balance sheet, or (c) the Company's and its subsidiaries (other than the acquired business') equity in income from continuing operations before income taxes, extraordinary items and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, of the acquired business exceeds 20% of such income of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for the Company's last fiscal year.

The financial statements should reflect all stock splits (including reverse stock splits), stock dividends and recapitalizations even if they have occurred since the date of the financial statements.

Any responses to Items in the Disclosure Document discussing income or revenues should identify the accounting period(s) involved and those figures should agree with the figures on the Income Statement for the same period(s). Any discussion of outstanding shares, warrants, and options (both in number and price) in your Disclosure Document should take into account stock splits and stock dividends. Often the stock dividends and splits are reflected only in the Financial Statements (or in a subsequent event Note to the latest Financial Statement).

The above discussion of financial statements may appear to permit the Company to include only the Balance Sheet and Income Statement in an annual report. In order for the financial statements to be in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Company must also present the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Retained Earnings.

SIGNATURES:

The Company's Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and its Directors must sign this Disclosure Document. When they sign this Disclosure Document, they represent that they have diligently attempted to confirm the accuracy and completeness of the information in the Document.

When the Chief Financial Officer signs this Disclosure Document, he or she represents that the financial statements in the Document have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles which have been consistently applied, except where explained in the notes to the financial statements and represents that the financial statements fairly state the Company's financial position and results of operations, or receipts and disbursements, as of the dates and period(s) indicated. He or she also represents that year-end figures include all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation under the circumstances.

Chief Executive Officer:	Directors:
1	
Title	1
	1
Chief Financial Officer:	
Title:	1

Appendix A

SAMPLE RISK FACTORS

These examples are intended to aid the Company in developing risk factor disclosure for the Company's own offering. These examples should not be copied word for word nor will they apply to every offering. An offering may require risk factor disclosure for which an example is not included in this list. Each risk factor should summarize the potential impact of the risk on the investor and not simply state a fact.

For a company with a limited operating history:

We have a limited operating history.

We were incorporated on *xx/xx/xx* and have been operating only since *xx/xx/xx*. Because we have been operating for only a short period of time, we have not produced a profit. There is no assurance that we will ever produce a profit. As a new enterprise, we are likely to be subject to risks our management has not anticipated. We have limited resources and will not be able to continue operating without the proceeds from this offering. It is possible that the proceeds from this offering and our other resources may not be sufficient for us to continue to finance our operations.

For a company that has a history of losses with no expectation for immediate profits:

We have incurred losses since inception and may incur future losses. We have not yet generated a profit from operations. As of the date of our most recent financial statements, we had an accumulated deficit of \$_____. We expect to continue to experience losses from operations and we cannot predict when or if we will become profitable. If we achieve profitability, we may not be able to sustain it.

For a company competing in a highly technical area where products rapidly become obsolete:

The (insert description) business is highly technical and our failure to introduce new products to the market may harm our business.

We operate in a highly technical industry, which is characterized by frequent introductions of new products and services into the market. Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to improve our present products, to develop new products and to provide necessary services and support. The proceeds of this offering may not provide us with sufficient funds to finance our research and development needs.

For a company that competes against larger and better financed companies in a competitive business:

We may not have sufficient financial resources to successfully compete in the (insert description) business.

A large number of enterprises provide products or services similar to ours. We will be competing with established businesses that have a operating history, and greater financial resources, management experience and market share than we have. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete or capture adequate market share. We will not be profitable if we cannot compete successfully with other businesses.

For a company that depends on the services of a limited number of key persons:

We depend on the services of key employees, whose knowledge of (insert description) would be difficult to replace.

Our success depends substantially on the services of (insert names and title of key persons). Our business may be harmed if we lose the services of these people and we are not able to attract and retain qualified replacements.

For a company with inexperienced management:

Our officers and directors have no experience managing a company in the (insert description) business.

None of our officers and directors has managed a company in the (insert description) business nor has experience in managing a development stage enterprise. Our ability to operate successfully may depend on our ability to attract and retain qualified technical personnel, who may be in great demand.

For a company whose management has been involved in other business ventures that have not been successful:

Our officers and directors have been involved in other business ventures that have not been successful.

Prior to organizing the Company, (insert name of appropriate officers and directors) operated a business similar to ours in which shareholders lost part or all of their investment. (Insert name of appropriate officers and directors) operated a company in the (insert description) business, which while not similar to our business, also resulted in losses to investors. Our ability to operate successfully may be determined by the ability of our officers and directors to succeed where they have failed before.

For a company whose business is highly regulated:

Our failure to comply with government rules and regulations may harm our business.

Our business must comply with local, state and federal rules and regulations. (BRIEFLY identify type of regulations, e.g., taxation, environmental, licenses.) We believe that we comply with the rules and regulations with which we are required to comply. If we fail to comply with a rule or regulation we may be subject to fines, or other penalties, or our permit or license may be lost or suspended. We may have to stop operating and our investors may lose their entire investment.

For a company whose officers, directors or key persons own a substantial number of promotional shares and options:

Our officers, directors and key persons will continue to have substantial control over the Company after the offering.

Officers, directors and key persons own (insert number) shares of common stock, when the common stock is a series of common stock is a series of common stock.	nich
will represent (insert number) % of outstanding common stock. Consequently, they	will
be able to elect all of the directors and control the direction of the Company. They p	aid
an average price of \$ per share as compared with the public offering price of	of
\$ per share. In addition, they own (insert number) options or warrants which	are
exercisable to purchase additional shares of common stock at an average price of	
\$ during the next (insert number) years. See Item 105, Principal Stockholder	ſS.

For a Company that has significant dilution between the offering price and book value:

The price of a share in this offering is significantly higher than the book value of the stock.

If we sell only the minimum number of shares in this offering, the book value per share will be \$____. This is (insert number) % of the offering price. As a result, investors participating in this offering will incur immediate and substantial dilution. To the extent outstanding options or warrants to purchase our shares are exercised, new investors will incur further dilution. Book value is determined by subtracting liabilities from tangible assets and dividing the answer by the number of outstanding shares.

For shares that have no existing market:

Because there is no market for our common stock, you may not be able to sell your shares.

You may never be able to sell your shares and recover any part of your investment, unless we are able to complete a subsequent public offering or we are able to sell the Company for cash or merge with a public company.

For an arbitrary offering price:

The offering price of our shares is arbitrary.

The offering price of \$___ per share bears no relationship to established value criteria such as net tangible assets, or a multiple of earnings per share and accordingly should not be considered an indication of the actual value of the Company.

For a debt offering where no sinking fund will be established:

We have not established a sinking fund for the purpose of accumulating funds for retiring the (insert name of debt instrument).

A sinking fund provides for periodic accumulation of funds over the life of the obligation with an independent trustee for the purpose of retiring the (insert name of debt instrument) at maturity. We will not maintain a sinking fund for the retirement of the (insert name of debt instrument) offered here and may not have the ability to retire the obligations when they mature.

For a debt offering where there will be no independent trustee:

We have not retained an independent trustee to act on investors' behalf in the event of default of our obligation to repay the (insert name of debt instrument). We have not retained an independent trustee to act on investors' behalf in the event of default. Therefore, there is no independent third-party to protect investors' interests in the event the Company fails to meet any of the agreements contained in the trust indenture.

For an offering to be sold by company employees:

We have not retained an independent party to sell the offering and the failure of our officers to sell the offering may result in a shortage of operating funds.

Officers of the Company are offering our shares on a "best-efforts" basis. We have not contracted with an underwriter, placement agent, or other person to purchase or sell all, or a portion of our shares and there is no assurance that we can sell all or any of the shares. Further, if we had hired an underwriter, placement agent, or other independent person to sell the offering, that person would have conducted an independent due diligence examination into our business.

Appendix B

ACCOUNTING TERMINOLOGY

The following is a description of some of the more important terms and concepts used in accounting:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The term "financial statements" refers to a presentation of financial data, including accompanying notes, derived from accounting records and intended to communicate an entity's economic resources or obligations at a point in time or the changes therein for a period of time in conformity with a comprehensive basis of accounting. Financial statements are the means by which the information accumulated and processed in financial accounting is periodically communicated to those who use it. Although financial statements come in a wide variety of forms, which serve various purposes, there are four basic general purpose statements. These are:

Balance Sheet Statement of Income or Statement of Operations Statement of Retained Earnings or Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity Statement of Cash Flows

A **Balance Sheet** is a statement which presents (as of a moment in time, unlike the other three statements which cover a time period) the assets, liabilities, and net worth of an entity. Sometimes this statement is titled **Statement of Assets and Liabilities**, **Statement of Financial Position**, or a similar title.

The **Statement of Income** or **Statement of Operations** presents for a period of time, an entity's revenues, costs, expenses, and net income or loss for the period involved. Other titles which are used include **Profit and Loss Statement**. An analogous statement for a cash basis entity could be a **Statement of Receipts and Disbursements**.

A Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity presents the changes that occurred during a given period affecting the corporation's capital accounts including retained earnings. If the only changes resulted from earnings, losses, or dividends, a company may simply present a Statement of Retained Earnings, or may combine the Statement of Changes in Retained Earnings with the Statement of Income. For partnerships, the analogous statement would be a Statement of Changes in Partners' Capital; for not-for-profit organizations, the corresponding statement would be a Statement of Changes in Fund Balances.

The **Statement of Cash Flows** is a statement that presents cash inflows and outflows from operating, financing, and investing activities for a given period.

PROSPECTIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENT.

Prospective financial information refers to any financial information about the future. The information may be presented as complete financial information or limited to one or more elements, items, or accounts. A prospective financial statement may be either a **Financial Forecast** or a **Financial Projection**.

A **Financial Forecast** is a prospective financial statement that presents, to the best of the responsible party's knowledge and belief, an entity's expected financial position, results of operations, and changes in financial position. In contrast, a **Financial Projection** is a prospective financial statement that presents, given one or more hypothetical assumptions, an entity's expected financial position, results of operations, and changes in financial position.

CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

Financial statements may be classified by the kind of third party involvement. In this context there are two classes of financial statements: **Audited** and **Unaudited**. Audited financial statements include only those statements which have been audited by independent certified public accountants (CPAs) and in some states, independent public accountants (PAs). **Unaudited** financial statements include those reviewed or compiled by CPAs or PAs, but also include financial statements prepared by management without any service performed by an independent CPA or PA.

AUDITED STATEMENTS

The term audit, audited, or auditing refers to an examination of the books and records of an entity by an independent CPA or independent PA intended to serve as a basis for the expression of opinion on the fairness with which the entity's financial statements present financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The auditor's report is the medium through which the accountant expresses an opinion or, if circumstances dictate, disclaims an opinion. Also, if circumstances require it, the auditor's report may contain an explanatory paragraph describing an uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

The terms "certified" or "examined" are sometimes used synonymously with the term "audited."

Sometimes, an independent accountant may audit financial statements that are not prepared in accordance with GAAP, but rather are prepared on another comprehensive basis of accounting (OCBOA). Such statements include cash basis, tax basis, regulatory basis, and other non-GAAP

basis. Such statements are generally titled differently from the equivalent GAAP statements. For example, a cash basis financial statement reflecting financial position might be titled **Statement of Assets and Liabilities Arising from Cash Transactions** instead of **Balance Sheet**.

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS

The term "unaudited" refers to all statements which have not been audited. Four classes of unaudited statements are discussed in this Appendix. These are:

Management prepared statements without any third party involvement.

Compilations pursuant to AICPA's Statement on Standards for Accounting and Review Service (SSARS).

Reviews pursuant to SSARS of a nonpublic entity (although under certain circumstances a review of a public entity may be made under SSARS).

Reviews of interim financial statements of public entities pursuant to SAS.

The following is a brief description of the four classes of unaudited statements:

STATEMENTS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT ONLY

These are statements in which no third party accounting service by an independent CPA or PA is involved. Such statements may have been prepared by an in-house accountant or other qualified individual or may have been prepared by someone with a very limited accounting background.

Statements prepared by management would not necessarily be in accordance with GAAP. Often such statements are prepared on an OCBOA basis.

COMPILATIONS

A compilation is a service by a CPA or a PA which involves reading compiled statements and considering whether they appear to be appropriate in form and free from obvious material errors.

Compiled financial statements are accompanied by a report which states that:

A compilation has been performed.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the representation of management.

The statements have not been audited or reviewed and no opinion or any other form of assurance is expressed on them.

A compiled financial statement would not necessarily be in accordance with GAAP.

REVIEWS PURSUANT TO SSARS

A review under SSARS is a service performed by a CPA or PA which includes making inquiries of the entity's personnel and applying analytical procedures, and reading statements to consider, on the basis of information known, whether the statements appear to conform with generally accepted accounting principles.

Financial statements reviewed under SSARS are accompanied by a report that states:

A review was performed in accordance with SSARS issued by the AICPA.

All information included in the statements is the representation of management.

A review consists principally of inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data.

A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, and that no opinion is expressed.

The CPA is not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the statements for them to be in conformity with GAAP.

Unaudited financial statements of a public entity

If a Public Entity is involved, neither a compilation nor a review under SSARS may generally be used. However, certain unaudited statements may be presented. For example, if in a public offering the issuer presented audited statements for three years 1991, 1990, and 1989 and an unaudited stub

SCOR Manual Page - 105

period for the three months ended March 31, 1992, the latter statement could not be compiled or reviewed under SSARS. The stub period statement could be indicated as being unaudited. The CPA or PA involved may have certain responsibilities with respect to the unaudited stub statements including performing inquiries and other varied procedures as deemed appropriate.

Unaudited stub period financial statements of a Public Entity may be accompanied by a report that states:

The statements were not audited.

No opinion is expressed on them.

(Under certain circumstances, a SSARS review may be performed for a Public Entity that is not required to have audited financial statements. When a Public Entity decides not to have its financial statements audited and is not required to do so, it may have its interim and annual financial statements reviewed under the provisions of SSARS.)

GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (GAAP)

GAAP is a technical accounting term that encompasses the conventions, rules, and procedures necessary to define accepted accounting principles at a particular time.

The word "principle" has several definitions one of which is "a general law or rule adopted or professed as a guide to action; a settled ground or basis of conduct or practice..." It is this definition which most accountants mean by the word <u>principle</u> when using the expression <u>accounting</u> <u>principle</u>. A <u>generally accepted</u> accounting principle is one which has substantial authoritative support.

Although there may be agreement on the existence of a body of <u>generally</u> accepted accounting principles, the determination of whether a particular accounting principle has substantial authoritative support may be difficult because no single reference source exists for all such principles. There is, however, a hierarchy of the various sources of GAAP, a summary of which is as follows:

- 1. Statements and interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), Opinions of the Accounting Principles Board (APB) of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), and AICPA Research Bulletins.
- 2. FASB Technical Bulletins, AICPA Industry Audit and Accounting Guides, and the AICPA Statements of Position (SOPs).
- 3. Consensus positions of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF), and AICPA Practice Bulletins.

- 4. AICPA accounting interpretations, "Qs and As" published by the FASB staff, as well as industry practices widely recognized and prevalent.
- 5. Other Accounting Literature.

Accrual basis and cash basis financial statements are examples of GAAP and non-GAAP financial statements, respectively. Accrual accounting attempts to record the financial effects on an entity of transactions in the period in which such transactions occur rather than in the period in which cash is received or paid by the entity. Accrual basis accounting recognizes that the acquisition of resources needed to provide services and the rendering of service by the organization during a period often do not coincide with the cash receipts and payments of the period. Typical accruals for small business include depreciation, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and taxes payable.

Another example of a non-GAAP financial statement is one that omits some of the required disclosure or where the disclosure is inadequate. For example, the Statement of Cash Flows is required by GAAP. If such a statement were omitted the auditor would have to qualify his or her report which would take the form of a separate paragraph in the report drawing the reader's attention to the omission and indicating that the Statement of Cash Flows is required by GAAP. The opinion paragraph of the auditor's report would by qualified by a phrase to the effect that "except that the omission of a statement of cash flows results in an incomplete presentation..." followed by the opinion. An accountant's review report would contain an analogous qualification.

GENERALLY ACCEPTED AUDITING STANDARDS (GAAS) AND STATEMENTS ON STANDARDS FOR ACCOUNTING AND REVIEW SERVICES (SSARS)

When a CPA issues a report on the audit of the financial statements of any entity he or she states that the examination was made in accordance with GAAS. The auditing standards referred to are those which have been promulgated by the auditing standards board of the AICPA in a series of releases titled Statements on Auditing Standards (SAS).

An accountant may issue a compilation or review of the financial statements of an entity in accordance with SSARS. A compilation or a review is a service which is substantially less in scope than an audit and generally may be used only with respect to nonpublic companies. However, there is an exception. When a public entity does not have its annual statements audited, the AICPA permits an accountant to review the entity's annual or interim statements in accordance with SSARS.

Interim financial statements of public or nonpublic companies may be reviewed by a CPA under standards established by the AICPA through SAS. Interim and annual financial statements of nonpublic companies as well as interim and annual financial statements of public companies which are not required to have their annual statements audited may be reviewed under the lower standards of SSARS.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements are always management's responsibility. With respect to audited financial statements, the auditor's responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements.

The opinion expressed relates to whether the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the entity and the results of its operations and cash flows in conformity with GAAP.

Unaudited financial statements are also management's responsibility. When an accountant is associated (i.e., consented to the use of his or her name in a report, document, or written communications containing the statements) with the unaudited financial statements, he or she is required to disclose the degree of responsibility, if any, being taken.

PREDECESSOR

The term "Predecessor" means an entity the major portion of the business and assets of which another entity acquired in a single succession, or in a series of related successions in each of which the acquiring entity (the "Successor") acquired the major portion of the business and assets of the acquired entity.

The acquisition of assets by the Successor organization is generally recorded as a Purchase. In some situations, if certain criteria are met, two or more businesses may be combined through a Pooling of Interest in which the ownership interests of the two or more businesses are continued (usually involving an exchange of common stock for common stock) with a new entity being formed, and in such a combination each of the original businesses are considered to be a Predecessor.

When a business combination is effected by the Purchase of assets by the Successor, the assets acquired are recorded at their fair value; where the business combination meets the criteria for a Pooling of Interest, the assets and liabilities are carried forward at the valuations reflected in the books of the Predecessor companies.

Where the Predecessor is a related party and the transaction does not meet the criteria for a Pooling of Interest, and thus the acquisition of the business and assets acquired are effected by means of a Purchase, the analyst should request documentation with respect to how the fair values of the assets acquired were reached.